
Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 

City Council Workshop & Meeting 
Agenda 

   April 3, 2023 
Auburn Hall, Council Chambers 

                                                                                                               
 
5:30 P.M. City Council Workshop  

A. FY 24 Preliminary Budget & 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Discussion – Phil Crowell 
B. Lewiston Falls/Monty Hydro Facility licensing process – Eric Cousens 
C. Executive Session - Economic Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) which premature disclosure 

would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the City. 
D. Executive Session - Economic Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) which premature disclosure 

would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the City. 
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Walker 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen requests, in which 
event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the 
agenda. 

 
1. Order 36-04032023* 

Setting the date for the School Budget Validation Referendum Election (June 13, 2023). 
 

2.           Order 45-04032023* 
Approving the transfer of $1,600 forfeiture assets in Rem in U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police Department. 
 

3.           Order 46-04032023* 
Approving the transfer of $2,000 forfeiture assets in Rem in U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police Department. 
  

II. Minutes  
• March 20, 2023, Regular Council Meeting 

 
III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• Communication – Request for funds from David Chittim, President of the Androscoggin Historical Society 
• LA Arts programming review and funding request 
• Council Communications (about and to the community) 

 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda.   

 

 



Page 2 of 3 

V. Unfinished Business

1. Order 33-03202023
Approving $4,598,331 of additional costs for environmental remediation of the new high school project and
authorizing general obligation bonds and a tax levy therefor. Public hearing and second reading.

VI. New Business

1. Order 37-04032023
Approving the question for a Municipal Referendum Election with respect to environmental remediation costs 
for the new high school construction project and general obligation bonds therefor.

2. Order 38-04032023
Authorizing the City Manager to execute the sale of St. Louis Church, 32 Dunn Street, Auburn, Maine.

3. Order 39-04032023
Approving the liquor license for the Olive Garden. Public hearing and vote.

4. Order 40-04032023
Approving the Annual Reports to the Maine State Housing Authority for Tax Year 4/1/2022 – 3/31/2023.

5. Order 41-04032023
Authorizing the City Manager to execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Public Works 
Teamsters (Drivers), effective 07/01/2023.

6. Order 42-04032023
Authorizing the City Manager to execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Public Works 
Teamsters (Mechanics), effective 07/01/2023.

7. Order 43-04032023
Approving the Mass Gathering for the Auburn Lobster Festival event to be held 05/06/2023. Public hearing.

8. Order 44-04032023
Approving the temporary liquor license for an Incorporated Civic Organization for the Auburn Lobster Festival 
event to be held 05/06/2023. Public hearing.

9. Order 47-04032023
Authorizing the City Manager to accept the Riverside Drive property, Map 184, Lot 30, as a gift on behalf of 
the City.

10. Order 48-04032023
Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a naming rights agreement of the Drummond Street Playground 
Park with Tizz Crowley.

VII. Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to
City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda

VIII. Reports (from sub-committees to Council)



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

a. Mayor’s Report  
b. City Councilors’ Reports  
c. City Manager Report 

 
IX.  Executive Sessions  
 
 
X. Adjournment 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023     
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  FY2024 Preliminary Budget and CIP 5-Year Plan discussion 
 
Information:  City Manager Phil Crowell will provide information to the Mayor and City Council regarding the 
FY24 Preliminary Budget and proposed 5-year Capital Improvement Plan.  
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None at this time. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Review the preliminary budget and 5 year CIP plan/projects. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The 5 Year CIP Plan was discussed at the 3/20/2023 Council workshop. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 
Attachments: Final Five Year CIP Plan 
 



BUDGET FY
24

5-Year Capital Improvement Plan

City of Auburn

CITY MANAGER’S PROPOSED
FY24 CIP PLAN



Page 1  

March 30, 2023 

Honorable Mayor Jason Levesque 
Auburn City Council Members 

 
RE: Five Year Capital Improvement Program Plan 

Dear Mayor and Councilors: 

The Five-Year City of Auburn Capital Improvement Plan is hereby submitted for your 
review in accordance with the provisions of the City Charter. 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
Introduction 

 

My preliminary draft recommendations for the FY24 Capital Improvement Program were 
presented for your review at the Joint City Council and School Committee workshop on 
March 20, 2023. The City of Auburn Capital Improvement Plan, updated annually, is a 
five-year plan that serves as a multi –year planning instrument. The expectation is that 
looking longer-term will bring stability to requests over time. While the long-term CIP Plan 
takes a five year look at the needs of the city, the focus will be on the projects 
requested for the upcoming fiscal year. Finally, the initial presentation of the CIP 
includes all needs of the city to sustain operations. 

 
As usual the CIP includes a spreadsheet for FY 2024 by expenditure and department, 
including the intended source of funds. There is also a more detailed sheet of 
expenditures planned for this year. 

 
Charter Requirements 

 
1. A clear general summary of its contents; 
2. Identification of the long-term goals of the community; 
3. A list of all capital improvements and other capital expenditures which are 

proposed to be undertaken during the fiscal years next ensuing, with appropriate 
supporting information as to the necessity of each; 

4. Cost estimates and recommended time schedules for each improvement or 
other capital expenditures; 

5. Method of financing upon which each capital expenditure is to be reliant; 
6. The estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the facilities to be 

constructed or acquired; 
7. A commentary on how the plan addresses the sustainability of the community 

and the region of which it is a part; and 
8. Methods to measure outcomes and performance of the capital plan related to 

the long-term goals of the community. 



Page 2  

Long-term Goals 
 
The goals of the City of Auburn focus on these 5 general areas. These are not in any 
particular order of importance: 

 
1. Planning for a better future. 
2. Reclaiming our streets. 
3. Making housing more attainable. 
4. Enacting resilient solutions. 
5. Enriching neighborhood identities 

 
The FY24 Work Plan recognizes that there are also other goals that serve as a “catch-all” 
for items outside of these 5 areas. 

 
Of course, we must remain aware of the overall cost of services and taxes. And we 
must also acknowledge that there is a limit to the amount of spending and debt service 
the City can afford. This leads me to suggest that the CIP has a final, general goal, “to 
assure that the assets of the City are maintained in a fiscally responsible manner.” 
Following this approach recognizes that neglect or underfunding the capital needs of 
the City results in long-term increased costs. 

 
Cost and Schedule 

 
Please see attached spreadsheet at the end of the memo. 

 
Status (See Next Page) 

 

Sustainability 
 
Sustainability has two concepts that must be acknowledged. The first is the core 
principle that assets are maintained such that they do not deteriorate to the point of 
being destroyed or beyond repair. The second concept identifies that the City of 
Auburn can only afford to sustain a certain annual expense. The job of the staff and 
Council is to strike that balance the best way possible. 

 
The following chart shows the amount of debt issued and retired over the last fifteen 
years. 



Page 3  

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - Fund 3000  

CURRENT STATUS OF BONDED PROJECTS  

FY 22-23  
          

   FY 22 FY 23    Unexpended  

Description Original Revised Actual To Date  Total Exp Encumbered (Over exp) Notes 
 Budget Budget  3/7/2023      

2021 GO BOND (FY 21-22)          
          

Airport Snow Removal 125,000.00 125,000.00  125,000.00  125,000.00  - Completed 
Union St/Chestnut Park 90,000.00 90,000.00 90,000.00   90,000.00  - Completed 
Hasty HVAC/Efficiency 375,000.00 375,000.00    - 253,668.00 121,332.00  

Comp Plan Property Acquisition 800,000.00 800,000.00 7,411.63 789,555.32  796,966.95 3,033.05 0.00 Completed 
Pettingill Ball Field Renovation 350,000.00 350,000.00 330,675.00 8,989.69  339,664.69  10,335.31  

Park Upgrades 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00   50,000.00  - Completed 
Airport East Side Ramp 78,750.00 78,750.00 78,750.00   78,750.00  - Completed 
Fiber Rollout 43,000.00 43,000.00 43,000.00   43,000.00  - Completed 
Eagle View Oblique 50,000.00 50,000.00 29,695.30 2,078.70  31,774.00 18,226.00 -  

PD-Body Cameras 170,000.00 170,000.00 170,000.00   170,000.00  - Completed 
Festival Plaza Rehab 100,000.00 100,000.00 4,181.00 542.14  4,723.14 819.00 94,457.86  

NSBA Dehumidification 20,000.00 20,000.00 -   - 20,000.00 -  

NSBA RO Water Treatment 35,000.00 35,000.00 -   -  35,000.00  

Public Safety Facility 200,000.00 200,000.00 160,838.33 39,161.67  200,000.00  - Completed 
Major Drainage 725,000.00 725,000.00 - 65,510.61  65,510.61 659,489.39 -  

Rec Playground Upgrade 1,300,000.00 1,300,000.00 10,416.24 547,906.63  558,322.87 200,300.00 541,377.13  

Reclamation 1,275,000.00 1,275,000.00 24,286.09 383,268.08  407,554.17 448,335.21 419,110.62  

Reconstruction 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 - 542,427.35  542,427.35 457,572.65 -  

Resurfacing 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 679,693.13 62,502.68  742,195.81 295,731.37 (37,927.18)  

MDOT Match 900,000.00 900,000.00 12,000.00 123,739.68  135,739.68 674,856.48 89,403.84  

Fire Air Pack 280,000.00 280,000.00 - 267,754.30  267,754.30 12,245.70 -  

PW 12 YD Pow 232,000.00 232,000.00 216,899.00 15,101.00  232,000.00  - Completed 
PW-Tracked Excavation 260,000.00 260,000.00 260,000.00 -  260,000.00  - Completed 
PW-Tractor Replacement 160,000.00 160,000.00 160,000.00   160,000.00  - Completed 
Police Vehicles 159,000.00 159,000.00 34,580.33 124,419.67  159,000.00  - Completed 
Police Motorcycle 18,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00   18,000.00  - Completed 
Planning Inspection Vehicle 24,000.00 24,000.00 24,000.00   24,000.00  - Completed 
Fire Apparatus 45,000.00 45,000.00 45,000.00   45,000.00  - Completed 
Fire UTV/Rescue Equipment 30,000.00 30,000.00 6,165.00 23,835.00  30,000.00  - Completed 
Contingency 5,250.00 5,250.00 5,250.00   5,250.00   Completed 
School Department 1,250,000.00 1,250,000.00 1,076,370.46   1,076,370.46  173,629.54  

Subtotal 2021 Bonds 11,150,000.00 11,150,000.00 3,537,211.51 3,121,792.52  6,659,004.03 3,044,276.85 1,446,719.12  
          
          

2022 GO BOND (FY 22-23)          
          

Auburn Hall Lighting 60,000.00 60,000.00    -  60,000.00  

Dangerous Buildings 120,000.00 120,000.00  58,442.73  58,442.73 47,430.57 14,126.70  

PO-Mobile Printers 50,000.00 50,000.00  24,179.80  24,179.80  25,820.20  

Public Safety Facility 300,000.00 300,000.00    - 32,000.00 268,000.00  

Major Drainage 500,000.00 500,000.00  4,748.80  4,748.80 1,912.50 493,338.70  

Reclamation 1,800,000.00 1,800,000.00    - 1,800,000.00 -  

Reconstruction 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00    -  1,200,000.00  

Resurfacing 600,000.00 600,000.00    -  600,000.00  

Sidewalks 100,000.00 100,000.00    -  100,000.00  

Enhanced Crosswalks 200,000.00 200,000.00    -  200,000.00  

MDOT Match 1,100,000.00 1,100,000.00  238,514.20  238,514.20  861,485.80  

Downtown Parking & Walkability 148,000.00 148,000.00    -  148,000.00  

12 Yard Plow Truck 520,000.00 520,000.00    - 520,000.00 -  

Street Sweeper 265,000.00 265,000.00  265,000.00  265,000.00  - Completed 
Tractor (haul) Replacemnt 75,000.00 75,000.00  75,000.00  75,000.00  - Completed 
Portable Flagging System 50,000.00 50,000.00  50,000.00  50,000.00  - Completed 
Police Vehicles 165,000.00 301,595.00  169,212.59  169,212.59 108.00 132,274.41  

Contingency 47,000.00 47,000.00  15,685.00      

Subtotal 2022 Bonds 7,300,000.00 7,436,595.00 - 900,783.12  900,783.12 2,401,451.07 4,103,045.81  
          

TOTAL 18,450,000.00 18,586,595.00 3,537,211.51 4,022,575.64  7,559,787.15 5,445,727.92 5,549,764.93  
          

. 



Page 4  

Debt Service Analysis 
 

Outstanding   Outstanding 

Debt at Beginning Debt Debt Debt at End of 

of Fiscal Year Issued Retirement Fiscal Year 
 

     

FY 08-09 $70,267,000 $6,430,000 $8,772,000 $67,925,000 

FY 09-10 $67,925,000 $6,500,000 $8,452,000 $65,973,000 

FY 10-11 $65,973,000 $7,900,000 $8,412,000 $65,461,000 

FY 11-12 $65,461,000 $4,500,000 $8,722,000 $61,239,000 

FY 12-13 $61,239,000 $6,207,323 $7,912,000 $59,534,323 

FY 13-14 $59,534,323 $5,625,000 $8,332,732 $56,826,591 

FY 14-15 $56,826,591 $6,800,000 $8,455,733 $55,170,858 

FY 15-16 $55,170,858 $9,950,000 $12,895,732 $52,225,126 

FY 16-17 $52,225,126 $5,030,000 $8,620,732 $48,634,394 

FY 17-18 $48,634,394 $8,500,000 $8,250,732 $48,883,662 

FY 18-19 $48,883,662 $7,655,000 $8,872,811 $47,665,851 

FY 19-20 $44,720,000 $22,900,000 $7,695,000 $59,925,000 

FY 20-21 $59,925,000 $76,445,000 $24,240,000 $112,130,000 

FY 21-22 $112,130,000 $60,070,000 $8,299,900 $163,900,100 

FY 22-23 $163,900,100 $6,800,000 $12,328,518 $158,371,582 

 
 

Average Debt Issued FY 08 - FY 23 $10,387,909 
Minus the debt for ELHS new High School 

 
 
 
 

Between FY09 and FY19 the City’s total outstanding debt was reduced by $22,601,149. 
Due to the approval by the State of the New Edward Little High School, In FY 20 through 
FY 22 the City has borrowed the $120,000,000 to complete the project. Of this 
$120,000,000, the State of Maine will pay the debt service on approximately 
$105,000,000, leaving $15,000,000 to be paid by the City. It is my goal to keep the debt 
service payments at 12% - 14% of the total operating budget as recommended by our 
bond advisors. This is the range that bond rating agencies look favorably on. Less than 
this and the bond rating agencies will feel that we are not addressing our infrastructure 
needs. And more than this will make them concerned about our ability to repay the 
debt. These efforts in conjunction with other sound management policies should 
continue to support or improve the City’s bond rating. 

 
Per the State of Maine’s state valuation for 2023, below is a table that shows what the 
City of Auburn’s legal debt limitation is as of June 30, 2023. This statutory analysis needs 
to be reviewed with the understanding of the City’s capacity to meet debt service 
payments. 



Page 5  

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE 
Legal Debt Management 

Last Ten Years 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
 June 30, 2023  

 
Total State Valuation 

  
$ 

2,607,050,000 

  

Legal Debt Limitation: 

 15% of State Valuation  391,057,500   

Debt Applicable to Debt Limitation: 
 

Bonded General Obligation Debt 
   

Legal Maximum 
  

As a Percent of 
    Dollar Legal State 
 

Purpose 
  

Percentage 
 

Amount 
 

Amount 
 

Maximum 
 

Valuation 
 
 

Municipal & School 

 
 

15.0% 

 
 

$ 391,057,500 

 
 
- 

 
 

0.00% 

 
 

0.00% 

   
Margin for Additional Borrowing: 

$ 
 391,057,500  

  

  
Historical Legal Debt Margin 

   

  Last Ten Fiscal Years    
  

Legal Debt 
 

Debt 
 

Legal Debt 
Debt 

Outstanding/ 
  

 Limit Outstanding Margin Legal Debt Limit   
 

2007 
$ 

288,330,000 
 
72,629,000 

 
215,701,000 

 
25.2% 

  

2016 294,015,000 52,225,126 241,789,874 17.8%   

2017 297,592,500 48,634,394 248,958,106 16.3%   

2018 297,255,000 48,883,662 248,371,338 16.4%   

2019 300,330,000 48,082,930 252,247,070 16.0%   

2020 315,592,500 59,925,000 255,667,500 14.9%   

2021 326,385,000 112,130,000 214,255,000 14.9%   

2022 342,300,000 178,342,692 163,957,308 52.1%   

2023 391,057,500 159,770,000 231,287,500 40.9%   



Page 6  

The most significant impact to the City of Auburn’s debt service being sustainable is 
investment in road infrastructure. Auburn’s local roads currently have zero funding in the 
operating budget. In the City’s Engineering CIP request there is $6.0 million 
recommended for this coming fiscal year. The $6.0 million, if funding and construction 
costs remain stable, would result in an ability to reconstruct, reclaim or overlay only 10% 
of the roads over the next 10 years. 

 
The funding allocated to overlays will proportionally grow as the City’s roadways are 
reconstructed. The overlay acts as a surface maintenance that protects and sustains 
previous reconstruction and reclamation projects. These funds account for 25% of the 
current request for the recommended budget but account for 80% of the roads 
undergoing work. 

 
Capital Investment Director Dan Goyette has said a maintenance program that would 
stabilize the remaining 90% of local roads would require $10,000,000 per year. Due to 
both staff capacity and financial availability this is too much to add to the operating 
budget in one year. 

 
Finally, I would like to thank the City Finance Director Jill Eastman for her major 
contribution to the preparation of this memo and her overall assistance with the Five- 
Year CIP Plan, the FY24 CIP, and the FY24 Budget. The City of Auburn has a capable 
and dedicated team with sound financial management. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 
Phillip L. Crowell Jr., City Manager 



CITY OF AUBURN 
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 24 - FY 28 

Page 7 

 

 

Description FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 
AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT  

$ - 
    

Airport Owned T-Hangars 
TOTAL AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
CITY CLERK  

$ 50,000 
 

$ 100,000 
 

$ 100,000 
 

$ 100,000 
 

$ 100,000 Record Restoration 
Fireproof Vault Construction   $ 100,000   

TOTAL CITY CLERK $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 200,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 
PLANNING & PERMITTIHNG      

Dangerous Buildings and Junkyard Cleanups $ 400,000 $ 200,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000  
Comprehensive Plan Program $ 200,000 $ 400,000    

Discontinue Municipal Fire Alarm System  $ 200,000    
Downtown Parking and Walkability-Grant Match  $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000  

TOTAL PLANNING AND PERMITTING $ 600,000 $ 1,200,000 $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ - 
CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND PURCHASING  

 
$ 85,000 

    
Facilities 

Auburn Hall Carpet Replacement 
Auburn Hall Boiler/Mechanical Upgrades   $ 865,000   
Hasty HVAC Replacement and Ventilation Upgrades $ 550,000     

Auburn Public Library Boiler Replacement  $ 125,000    
NSBA Exhaust Fan and Control System Upgrade $ 68,000     

Ingersoll Field Lighting Replacement $ 35,000     
Ingersoll Arena Installation of Air Conditioning    $ 445,000  

Library HVAC and Controls Upgrade  $ 630,000    
Public Safety Facility $ 3,000,000 $ 25,000,000 $ 25,000,000   

Public Works Space Needs Analysis/Addition  $ 100,000   $ 3,500,000 
Intermodal Facility  $ 25,000    

Auburn Hall Building Envelope Repairs   $ 100,000   
Building Management Control System   $ 200,000   

Public Works Repoint Brick   $ 100,000   
Auburn Hall Reconfiguration/APD Relocate    $ 500,000  

PAL Center (new) $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000    
 Parking      $          400,000    

Total Facilities $ 5,238,000 $ 27,780,000 $ 26,265,000 $ 945,000 $ 3,500,000 
City wide Vehicles      

Police Vehicle Replacement $ 225,500 $ 265,300 $ 267,300 $ 269,300 $ 271,300 
Public Works Replace Car (Ford Ranger) $ 25,000     

Recreation Minibus replacement/upgrade $ 80,000  $ 80,000   

Total City-Wide Vehicles $ 330,500 $ 265,300 $ 347,300 $ 269,300 $ 271,300 
Engineering      

Reconstruction $ 1,500,000 $  3,600,000 $  1,300,000 $  1,400,000 $ 1,000,000 



CITY OF AUBURN 
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 24 - FY 28 

Page 8 

 

 

Description FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 
Reclamation $ 1,500,000 $  1,150,000 $  1,000,000 $  1,000,000 $ 1,200,000 
Major Drainage $ 500,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - 
MDOT Match $ 1,500,000 $  1,100,000 $  1,000,000 $  1,000,000 $ 1,200,000 
Resurfacing $ 750,000 $ 900,000 $  1,000,000 $ 700,000 $ 300,000 
Retaining Walls $ 250,000 $ 444,000 $ 40,000   

Pavement Assessment $ 100,000     

Total Engineering $ 6,100,000 $  7,194,000 $  4,340,000 $  4,100,000 $ 3,700,000 
TOTAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS & PURCHASING $  11,668,500 $ 35,239,300 $ 30,952,300 $  5,314,300 $ 7,471,300 
FIRE DEPARTMENT      

Fire 
Apparatus Replacement $ 60,000 $ 785,000 $ 60,000 $ 50,000  
Fire Hose Replacement   $ 40,000   

Extrication equipment replacement $ 50,000     
Air-pac replacement      

Rescue Boat Replacement  $ 30,000    
AEDs for Police & Fire $ 45,000     

Cascade air fill station system replacement   $ 60,000   
Rescue Trailer $ 15,000     

Total Fire $ 170,000 $ 815,000 $ 160,000 $ 50,000 $ - 
EMS      

Ambulance Replacement $ 450,000 $ 170,000  $ 180,000  
Cardiac monitors $ 47,000 $ 70,000 $ 70,000 $ 70,000  

Stretcher Replacement  $ 30,000  $ 32,000  
Chest Compression Systems $ 21,000     

Total EMS $ 518,000 $ 270,000 $ 70,000 $ 282,000 $ - 
TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT $ 688,000 $ 1,085,000 $ 230,000 $ 332,000 $ - 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY      

Security Camera Project $ 50,000     

TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY $ 50,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - 
LA911 (Auburn's share)      

Server Infrastructure Replacement $ 150,000     
Communications Center    $  1,250,000  

Dispatch Center HVAC   $ 100,000   

TOTAL LA911 $ 150,000 $ - $ 100,000 $  1,250,000 $ - 
NSBA      

Gold Series Stadium Charis (750 w/rack)  $ 100,000 $ 100,000   
Rehab Front Desk to Ticket Office $ 50,000     

Rubber Flooring, Front Lobby w/ new Logo, Locker room area $ 100,000     
Rubber Flooring, Mezzanine and Rink 1 and 2  $ 100,000    



CITY OF AUBURN 
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 24 - FY 28 

Page 9 

 

 

Description FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 
Protective netting Rink 1 and 2   $ 35,000   

New LED Scoreboards (2)   $ 100,000   

New Zamboni    $ 200,000  
New board system w/glass for Rink 2     $ 300,000 

TOTAL NSBA $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 235,000 $ 200,000 $ 300,000 
POLICE DEPARTMENT     

$ 200,000 
 

Cruiser Camera System Replacement 
Body worn Cameras     $ 280,000 
Gym Equipment Replacement  $ 25,000    

Digital Mapping Equipment     $ 50,000 
Patrol Rifle Replacement $ 21,000     

Emergency Operations Center Upgrade  $ 50,000    
TASER Upgrade $ 169,000     

Mobile Data Terminal Replacement  $ 125,000    
Command Vehicle Replacement   $ 300,000   

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT $ 190,000 $ 200,000 $ 300,000 $ 200,000 $ 330,000 
PUBLIC WORKS      

Public Works 
Replace 7-yard plow trucks (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance) $ 601,600 $ 601,000 $ 902,000 $ 601,000 $ 1,203,200 
Replace 12-yard plow trucks (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance)    $ 700,000  

Replace front end loader (loading materials and snow removal) $ 250,000  $ 250,000 $ 500,000  
Weather Station  $ 47,150    

Grader   $ 450,000  $ 450,000 
Weekingtech Foam Stream  $ 35,300    

Replace One Ton Truck with Plow (2) $ 150,000 $ 70,000  $ 70,000 $ 70,000 
Replace 3/4 Ton Pickup w Plow  $ 160,000 $ 80,000 $ 50,000 $ 90,000 
Hot Box Pavement Reclaimer   $ 50,000   
Backhoe  $ 185,000    

Replace sidewalk tractor (sidewalk maintenance and mowing)  $ 170,000 $ 170,000 $ 170,000  
Longley Park Renovation  $ 110,500    

Scorpion Trailer Crash Pad (Safety)  $ 50,000    
Ventrac Machine with Attachments  $ 48,000    

Hay Bale Chopper (Erosion Control) $ 10,000 $ 10,000    
Trench Box  $ 15,000    

Drone  $ 20,000    
Replace Vactor Truck  $ 525,000    

Pressure Washer for Wash Bay  $ 50,000    
Replace Western Star Pulp Truck    $ 275,000  

Replace Chipper  $ 80,000    



CITY OF AUBURN 
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 24 - FY 28 

Page 10 

 

 

Description FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 
Replace Loader Mounted Snow Blower     $ 150,000 
Field GPS Painter  $ 63,000    
Electrical Division - Vehicle Replacement  $ 50,000    

Electrical Division - Bucket Truck Replacement      
Upper Pettengill Light Replacement   $ 300,000   

Replace Softball Field Wall Pads   $ 11,000 $ 11,000  
Mount Auburn Ave Retaining Wall Replacement  $ 185,250    

Repair Brick Sidewalk-Main St  $ 262,700    

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS $ 1,011,600 $  2,737,900 $  2,213,000 $  2,377,000 $ 1,963,200 
RECREATION & SPORTS FACILITIES  

 
$ 35,000 

    
Recreation 

Update Basketball Court Logo 
Senior Center Building Upgrades and Repairs $ 10,000  $ 10,000  $ 10,000 
Equipment Repairs Ingersoll $ 10,000  $ 10,000  $ 10,000 
Replace Turf at Ingersoll   $ 300,000   

TOTAL RECREATION & SPORTS FACILITIES $ 55,000 $ - $ 320,000 $ - $ 20,000 
TRANSPORTATION  

$ 200,000 
    

Traffic Calming and Pedestrian Safety 
TOTAL TRANSPORTATION $ 200,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - 
EDUCATION (See attached list)      

TOTAL CIP $  14,813,100 $ 40,762,200 $ 35,050,300 $ 10,273,300 $ 10,184,500 



CITY OF AUBURN 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 23 - 24 Only 

Page 11 

 

 

Description Bonds Operating Other 

CITY CLERK Record Restoration $ 50,000   

TOTAL CITY CLERK $ 50,000 $ - $ - 
PLANNING & PERMITTING 

Dangerous Building Demolition 
Comprehensive Plan Program 

 
$ 400,000 
$ 200,000 

  

TOTAL PLANNING AND PERMITTING $ 600,000 $ - $ - 
CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND PURCHASING 

Facilities 
PAL Center (new) 
Public Safety Facility 
Carpet Replacement - Auburn Hall 
NSBA Exhaust Fan and Control System Upgrade 
Hasty HVAC Replacement and Ventilation Upgrades 
Ingersoll Field Lighting Replacement 

Total Facilities 
City wide Vehicles 

Police Vehicle Replacement 
Public Works-Vehicle Replacement 
Recreation Minibus replacement/upgrade 

Total City-Wide Vehicles 
Transportation 

Traffic Calming and Pedestrian Safety 
Total Transportation 
Engineering 

Reconstruction 
Reclamation 
Major Drainage 
MDOT Match 
Resurfacing 
Retaining Walls 
Pavement Assessment 

Total Engineering 

 
 

$ 1,500,000 
$ 3,000,000 
$ 85,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$ 35,000 

 
 
 
 
 

$ 68,000 
$ 550,000 

$ 4,585,000 $ 35,000 $ 618,000 

 
$ 225,500 
$ 25,000 
$ 80,000 

  

$ 330,500 $ - $ - 

 
$ 200,000 

  

$ 200,000 $ - $ - 

 
$ 1,500,000 
$ 1,500,000 
$ 500,000 
$ 1,500,000 
$ 750,000 
$ 250,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$ 100,000 

 

$ 6,000,000 $ 100,000 $ - 
TOTAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS & PURCHASING $ 11,115,500 $ 135,000 $ 618,000 

 

 

 
 

 



CITY OF AUBURN 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 23 - 24 Only 

Page 12 

 

 

Description Bonds Operating Other 

FIRE & EMS 
Fire Apparatus Replacement 

Extrication Equipment 
Rescue Trailer 

 
EMS Ambulance Replacement 

AEDs for Police and Fire 
Cardiac monitors 
Chest Compression Systems 

 
$ 60,000 
$ 50,000 
$ 15,000 

  
$ - 

$ 125,000 $ - $ - 
  $ 450,000 

$ 45,000 
$ 47,000 
$ 21,000 

$ - $ - $ 563,000 
TOTAL FIRE AND EMS $ 125,000 $ - $ 563,000 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Security Camera Project 
 

$ 50,000 
  

TOTAL IT $ 50,000 $ - $ - 
LA 911 Server Infrastructure Replacement $ 150,000   
TOTAL LA911 $ 150,000 $ - $ - 
NSBA (Norway Savings Bank Arena) 

Rehab front desk to Ticket Office 
Rubber Flooring, Front Lobby w/new Logo, Locker room area 

 
 

$ 100,000 

 
$ 50,000 

 

TOTAL NSBA $ 100,000 $ 50,000 $ - 
POLICE Patrol Rifle Replacement 

TASER Upgrade 
$ 21,000 
$ 169,000 

  

TOTAL POLICE $ 190,000 $ - $ - 
PUBLIC WORKS 

2 Replace 12-yard plow trucks (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance) 
1 Replace Front End Loader 
3 Replace One ton truck w/plow (2) 
4 Hay Bale Chopper (Erosion Control) 

 
$ 601,600 
$ 250,000 
$ 150,000 

 
 
 
 

$ 10,000 

 

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS $ 1,001,600 $ 10,000 $ - 
 

  

  
  
  

 



CITY OF AUBURN 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 23 - 24 Only 

Page 13 

 

 

Description Bonds Operating Other 

RECREATION & SPORTS FACILITIES 
Recreation 

Update Basketball Court Logo 
Senior Center Building Upgrades and Repairs 
Equipment Repairs Ingersoll 

 
 

$ 35,000 

 
 
 
 

$ 10,000 

 
 
 

$ 10,000 

TOTAL RECREATION AND SPORTS FACILITIES $ 35,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 
EDUCATION (See attached list) $ -   

TOTAL CIP $ 13,417,100 $ 205,000 $ 1,191,000 



Page 14 

 

 

 

 CITY WIDE   
 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN   

 FY 24 BONDS   

Description  Page 
City Clerk Record Restoration $ 50,000 16 
Econ Dev & Planning Dangerous Building Demolition $ 400,000 17 
Econ Dev & Planning Comprehensive Plan Program $ 200,000 18 
Facilities PAL Center $ 1,500,000  

Facilities Public Safety Facility $ 3,000,000 19 
Facilities Carpet Replacement - Auburn Hall $ 85,000 20 
City Wide Vehicles Police Vehicle Replacement $ 225,500 21 
City Wide Vehicles Public Works-Vehicle Replacement $ 25,000 22 
City Wide Vehicles Recreation Minibus Replacement $ 80,000 23 
Transportation Traffic Calming and Pedestrian Safety $ 200,000 24 
Engineering Reclamation $ 1,500,000 25 
Engineering Reconstruction $ 1,500,000 26 
Engineering Major Drainage $ 500,000 27 
Engineering MDOT Match $ 1,500,000 28 

Engineering Resurfacing $ 750,000 29 
Engineering Retaining Walls $ 250,000 30 
Fire Apparatus Replacement $ 60,000 31 
Fire Excavation Equipment $ 50,000 32 
Fire Rescue Trailer $ 15,000 33 
IT Security Camera Project $ 50,000 34 
LA911 Server Infrastructure Replacement $ 150,000 35 
NSBA Rubber Flooring, Front Lobby and Locker Room Area $ 100,000 36 
Police Patrol Rifle Replacement $ 21,000 37 
Police TASER Upgrade $ 169,000 38 
Public Works Replace 12-yard plow trucks $ 601,600 39&40 
Public Works Replace Front End Loader $ 150,000 41 
Public Works Replace One ton truck w/ plow $ 250,000 42 
Recreation Update Basketball Court w/new logo $ 35,000 43 
Administration Contingency $ 82,900  

TOTAL CIP $ 13,500,000  



Page 15 

 

 

 

CITYWIDE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

FY 24 Other Funds 
Description Funds  Page 

Facilities NSBA Exhaust Fan and Control System ARPA $ 68,000 44 
Facilities Hasty HVAC Replacement & Ventilation ARPA $ 550,000 45 
EMS Ambulance Replacement EMS Capital Reserve $ 450,000 46 
EMS AEDs for Police and Fire ARPA $ 45,000  
EMS Cardiac Monitors EMS Capital Reserve $ 47,000 47 
EMS Chest Compression Systems EMS Capital Reserve $ 21,000 48 
Senior Center FB Building Upgrades and Repairs Senior Center FB $ 10,000 49 
     

TOTAL CIP $ 1,191,000  



Page 16 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Binding and preserving the City's old records of Council Minutes, etc. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Record Restoration 

Project Purpose: Restore and protect all of the City's old records 
 

Department: City Clerk 
 

 

Location: City Clerks Vault 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 20 yrs 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 50,000 

We are required by Statute to keep these records forever. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 

 

Total Cost 
$ 450,000 

 



Page 17 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

We have completed two more junkyard cleanups at tax acquired properties in 2022 2 (1865 Hotel 
145 Eastman Lane). We will be pursuing cleanup at 250 Hackett Road Junkyard in 2023/2024 and 
have a condemned building at 100 Hampshire Street that may require demolition. Others may 
come to our attention in any given year due to complaints, fire, or damage. We attempt to recoup 
costs from the sale of property and special tax filings but need to address the safety and 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Dangerous Buildings and Junkyard Cleanups 

Project Purpose: Removal of Dangerous conditions from properties 
 

Department: Planning & Permitting 
 

Location: 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 400,000 

Without these funds we will not be able to address dangerous buildings or illegal junkyard 
cleanups. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
 $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 400,000 

 



Page 18 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation Program-Council reserved funding for priority 
comprehensive plan efforts and property acquisition when opportunities present themselves. 
Past years projects include ballfields design, Mapping services for Comp Plan Update and printing 
updated plan, Lake Auburn Study. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Comprehensive Plan Program Implementation 

Project Purpose: Implement Elements of the Comprehensive Plan Prioritized by 
 

Department: Planning & Permitting 
 

Location: 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 200,000 

Without these funds we will not be able to implement comprehensive and strategic plan 
initiatives. If there is not funding available, the Council will need to budget for priorities 
next year and that does not place the City in a Competitive position for a property that 
may become available during the year. Council will be asked to vote to allocate this 
funding to specific efforts during the year. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
 $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 200,000 

 



Page 19 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Half of cost for Engine 2 reconstruction. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

Project Purpose: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Public Safety Facility 

 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

Location: 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 3,000,000 

Existing facility is beyond useful life. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ 25,000,000 $ 25,000,000  $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 53,000,000 

 



Page 20 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replace existing carpet on 1st and 2nd floors with new carpet tiles. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Auburn Hall Carpet Replacement 

Project Purpose: Facility Maintenance 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Auburn City Hall 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 85,000 

Existing carpet is old, stained and worn out. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 85,000 

 



Page 21 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Scheduled replacement of four police vehicles. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Priority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Scheduled Fleet Replacement 

Project Purpose: Vehicle Replacement 
 

Department: Police 
 

 

Location: Police Department 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: Five Years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ - 

The department has established a three-year life cycle for the patrol fleet and a five to seven year 
life cycle for support vehicles. Due to previous budget cuts, the service life of some patrol vehicles 
has been extended. This has increased vehicle repair costs significantly while drastically reducing 
trade-in value. The department will trade out a 2012 vehicle, a 2015 vehicle and two 2016 vehicles. 
The department will purchase four new vehicles. one of which will be an electric vehicle for 
Support Services / CID. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ 225,500 $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 225,500 

 



Page 22 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replace Ford Ranger pick-up truck with Electric Vehicle and install charging station at Public Works 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Eletric Vehicle 

Project Purpose: Replace worn-out equipment 
 

Department: Public Works 
 

 

Location: Woodbury Brackett Municipal Garage 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 25,000 

This unit would replace unit 89 a Ford Ranger pick-up truck. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 25,000 

 



 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Current Minibus used for senior trips is in-need of many repairs and is currently unsafe to take on 
long trips. We are looking to replace that Minibus with a new one. Looking to add an additional 
$2,500 to cover the possible repair costs in 2-3 years. 

  
 

Fiscal Year: 2024 

Prority: 

Project Title: 

High 

New Minibus 

Project Purpose: Replace "Age-Friendly" Mini Bus with a new one 

Department: Recreation 
 

 
Location: Auburn Senior Community Center 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 5-10 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 Total Cost 
$ 80,000 $ - $ 2,500 $ - $ 82,500 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Senior/age-friendly trips are limited to the space we have on our minibusses. With our 
before & aftercare program that limits the use of that "Rec" minibus to 9-2PM Mon-Fri. 
Having another reliable bus will ensure that all programs get the proper and safe 
transportation. 



Page 24 

 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Modeling after the FY23 City Council amended request, these funds would be available to support 
the implementation of traffic calming and pedestrian safety efforts that align with neighborhood-
initiated requests. 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Traffic Calming and Pedestrian Safety 

Project Purpose: To create targeted funds for neighborhood-initiated traffic calming 
 

Department: Transportation 
 

 

Location: Various locations throughout the City 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Useful Life: 

 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 200,000 

Traffic calming and pedestrian safety are regular requests from Councilors and citizens city- 
wide. A dedicated fund of capital resources, aligned with policies to manage requests for 
safety evaluations, will improve livability in the city and support the Reclaiming our Streets 
recommendation in the strategic plan. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 200,000 

 



Page 25 

 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Hersey Hill Road from North Auburn Roat to Minot Town Line. 
Harmon's Corner Road from South Witham Road to Pownal Road. 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Road Reclamation 

Project Purpose: Street Improvement 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Various 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 20 Years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 1,500,000 

These road segments have low Pavement Condition Ratings and are in need of repair. These roads 
are good candidates for reclamation, where existing road base is utilized, and the road grade is 
raised. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 1,500,000 

 



Page 26 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Fourth Street from South Main Street to End. 
Dunn Street from South Main Street to Second Street. 
Loring Street from South Main Street to Seventh Street. 
Marian Drive from Sherwood Drive to Broad Street. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Road Reconstruction 

Project Purpose: Street Improvement 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Various 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 20 Years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 2,100,000 

These road segments have low Pavement Condition Ratings and are in need of repair. These 
sections will require restoration of the road base, closed drainage system, curbing and sidewalks. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 2,100,000 

 



Page 27 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

This item covers the MS4 Storm water permit regulations and drainage asset management. In 
addition, it would allow us to make repairs to existing systems that were identified as part of our 
storm water infrastructure assessment as failing. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Major Drainage 

Project Purpose: State Mandate 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Various 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 500,000 

The City is required by MDEP to follow storm water regulations and annual reporting. The City is 
also mapping its storm water infrastructure inventory for future planning. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 500,000 

 



Page 28 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

This would provide the match for the MPI program ($825,000) which would reconstruct a State 
Aid Road. The additional $$$$ is to provide match money for STIP projects. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
MDOT Match 

Project Purpose: Street Improvement 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Various 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 20 Years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 1,500,000 

The money will provide the matching funds for the MDOT's Municipal Partnership Initiative (50/50) 
and the matching funds for STIP Projects (80/20). Without these funds the State will not 
contribute the 50% or the 80% matches. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 1,500,000 

 



Page 29 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Holbrook Road from North Auburn Road to Town Line. 
South Witham Road from Penley Corner Road to Sopers Mill Road. 
Maple Hill Road from Dillingham Hill Road to Lakeshore Drive. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Pavement Resurfacing 

Project Purpose: Street Improvement 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Various 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 Years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 800,000 

This would add about 10 years of life to the roadway, allowing for another resurfacing in the future 
instead of needing to reconstruct the road at a much more significant cost. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 800,000 

 



Page 30 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Repairing a failing dry stacked retaining wall on a corner within the Hillcrest Street corridor. This 
is a safety project to include a new retaining wall with guardrail. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Retaining Walls 

Project Purpose: Street Improvement 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Hillcrest Street 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 40 Years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 250,000 

The current retaining wall is failing and poses a safety concern to motorists and abutting 
properties. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 250,000 

 



Page 31 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

To replace a 2014 Ford Explorer which is used as the Chief's vehicle. The project costs include 
vehicle costs as well as emergency lights, and the cost of a small command console so there will 
be a back up to our command unit if it is out of service. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Replace unit 320 

Project Purpose: Replace worn out equipment 
 

Department: Fire 
 

 

Location: Fire 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 60,000 

 
The current vehicle has 125,000 miles on it, needs body repairs and is nearing the end of its 
reliable life. This project cost also funds a small command console with radios which will be 
installed and provide redundancy for our primary command SUV when the primary unit is out of 
service. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 60,000 

 



Page 32 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replace one full set of hydraulic extrication tools. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Extrication tool replacement/upgrade 

Project Purpose: Replace tools 
 

Department: Fire 
 

 

Location: Fire/Center St. Station 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 15 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 50,000 

 

The departments current extrication tools are over 20 years old and lack the power to cut 
the high strength components used it today’s modern cars. The department has 
extrication tools on all three front line fire apparatus. This is phase two of a three step 
plan to upgrade all department extrication tools to work effectively on modern vehicles. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ 50,000 $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 100,000 

 



Page 33 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on I 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

This project will replace Rescue 1, Which is a 2001 PL Custom converted ambulance, with 125,000 
miles on it. It will be replaced with a 16-foot enclosed trailer. The project costs include the cost of 
the trailer and all necessary shelving and mounting of the technical rescue equipment currently 
stored and deployed in Rescue 1. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Moderate 

 
Replace Rescue 1 

Project Purpose: Replace Rescue 1 with a trailer 
 

Department: Fire 
 

 

Location: Fire 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 20 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 15,000 

 

Rescue 1 is long overdue for replacement. Moving to a trailer will eliminate an old 
apparatus from our fleet reducing maintenance costs. The trailer can be stored outside 
freeing up much needed bay space in the fire station. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 15,000 

 



Page 34 

 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Auburn Hall parking garage is on schedule to have 12 cameras replaced due to age and 
advancements in camera technology, along with adding 3 cameras in the Pettengill Park fields. 

  
 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Security Camera Project 

Project Purpose: Replace outdated equipment 
 

Department: IT 
 

 

Location: Auburn Hall & Pettengill Park 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Useful Life: 

 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 50,000 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

The IT department has reviewed the age of cameras and found many needed to be 
replaced to keep up with security needs within the Parking Garage at Auburn Hall. It was 
also brought to our attention that we needed more camera footage on a regular basis at 
Pettengill Park Fields, so we would like to add cameras there. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 50,000 

 



 

 

Est. Total Cost FY24: 0 Est. Total Cost FY25-FY28: 
City Share FY24: 0 City Share FY25-FY28: 

 

300,000 
150,000 

 

FY24 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Form 

 
Project Title: LA911 Server Infrastructure Replacement 

 
Operational Funding Division:  LA911  Project Name:  Server Replacement  

 

 
Project Description: 
Planned LA911 Server Infrastructure Replacement. Hardware will be due to be replaced because of end of life (EOL) situations or 
replaced due to age of equipment, and manufacture support limitations in FY23. The Storage Area Networks (SAN), network 
switches, and servers that house the datacenter of LA911 will be due to be replaced in FY23. This project includes both the 
replacement of production site hardware and Disaster Recovery (DR) site hardware with reuse of current equipment as available. 
We have pushed the project to FY25 to align with planned relocation of the 9-1-1 Center. 

 
Consistency with the Comprehensive or Strategic Plans or other related planning documents: 
Organizations should proactively develop strategies that leverage resources, anticipate future requirements, and focus on 
business goals and performance objectives. As technology and other computing platforms become central to supporting the 
mission of the organization, effective planning for the management of these platforms has become vital. 

 
 
 

Justification for project implementation/construction and segments, if applicable: 
By not staying current with supported hardware and emerging technologies, systems become outdated, obsolete, and lose 
residual value. There is a high factor of risk involved in falling behind in a datacenter hardware lifecycle management. Potential 
issues are extended system downtime, data loss, and data corruption. 

 
 

Future maintenance costs if known, including contracts and special service requirements: 
All hardware purchased will have a 3 - 5-year life span. Recurring capital expenditure will be required each 3- 5-year cycle. 

 
 
 

How were cost estimates obtained and expenditure commitment: 
Worked with vendor to assess current usage and needs with planned growth and data trends. 

 
 

  FUNDING SOURCES   

Source Amount    

City Operating Budget     

City Bond Issue 150,000    
Federal/State Funding  Agency:   Approval Received?  Yes No  
Other Agency/Municipality  150,000  Agency:   Approval Received?  Yes No  
Total Project Costs 300,000    

 
IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE (Fiscal Years) 

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Future 
 

Total Project Cost  300,000  
 

Non-City Share  150,000  
 

City Share 0 150,000 0 0 0 0 
 

Attach on separate page(s)/sheet additional information (if needed) 
 
 

Page 35 



Page 36 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Replacement of wear and tear after ten (10) years 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

Project Purpose: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Floor Rubber 

 

Department: Norway Savings Bank Arena 
 

Project 
Description: 

 
 
 

Location: 

Justification: 

 
 
 

 
Useful Life: 10 years 

 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 98,875 

FY 24: To remove and dispose of existing rubber flooring and to supply and install new 3/8" black 
rubber flooring with light grey 10% color speckle in the locker rooms, coaches’ room, locker 
hallway, referee's room, and main lobby to include installation of new "Norway Savings Bank 
Arena" 

 
FY 25: Supply and install new 3/8" rubber flooring color black with light grey 10% speckle 
throughout the a Mezzanine with new black cove base as needed. Remove and dispose of existing 
rubber flooring and to supply and install new 3/8" black rubber flooring with light grey 10% color 
speckle in Rink 1 per walk-through. Remove and dispose of existing rubber flooring and to supply 
and install new 3/8" black rubber flooring with light grey 10% color speckle in Rink 2 per walk- 
through 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ 113,345 $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 212,220 

 



Page 37 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replacement of Patrol Rifles 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Priority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Patrol Rifle Replacement 

Project Purpose: Replace worn-out equipment 
 

Department: Police 
 

 

Location: Police Department 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 15 Years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 21,000 

Current Patrol rifles are over 15 years old and have reached the end of their service life. 
New rifles will also include a noise suppressor to reduce hearing loss exposure to officers. 
22 rifles will be purchased. The original project was partially funded in FY23 at $17,500 
with the understanding the second half would be funded in FY24. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 21,000 

 



Page 38 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

Useful Life: 
5 Years 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 186,000 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 186,000 

 

Replace 55 TASER X26P units with TASER 7 units 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
TASER Replacement Project 

Project Purpose: Replace worn-out equipment 
 

Department: Police 
 

 

Location: Police Department 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The TASER X26P has reached the end of its service life and will no longer be serviced by 
AXON. The TASER 7 is the model that Axon has transitioned to. TASER 7 is available as a 
$55.32 per month, per unit subscription that includes the TASER weapon, docks, batteries 
and cartridges, integration with Axon Evidence, full user training and certification for five 
years. 



Page 39 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

This unit is used for plowing and sanding/salting in winter months and is used to move material 
to and from APW job sites in the summer months. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Replace Single Axle Dump Truck 

Project Purpose: Replace worn-out equipment 
 

Department: Public Works 
 

 

Location: Woodbury Brackett Municipal Garage 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 yrs 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 300,800 

This would replace unit 7- single axle dump truck with plow and wing. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 300,800 

 



Page 40 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

This unit is used for plowing and sanding/salting in winter months and is used to move material 
to and from APW job sites in the summer months. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Replace Single Axle Dump Truck 

Project Purpose: Replace worn-out equipment 
 

Department: Public Works 
 

 

Location: Woodbury Brackett Municipal Garage 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10yrs 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 300,800 

This would replace unit 16-single axle dump truck with plow and wing. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 300,800 

 



Page 41 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replace 1999 John Deere Wheeled Bucket Loader 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Replace Bucket Loader 

Project Purpose: Replace worn-out equipment 
 

Department: Public Works 
 

 

Location: Woodbury Brackett Municipal Garage 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 15 yrs 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ - 

The loader is used in winter operations for snow removal, loading trucks with sand and 
salt, and plowing as it's available. The 1999 loader is useful life and needs replacement. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ - 

 



Page 42 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replace one ton truck with plow and sander. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
One Ton Truck 

Project Purpose: Replace worn-out equipment 
 

Department: Public Works 
 

 

Location: Woodbury Brackett Municipal Garage 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 75,000 

This unit would replace unit 33 a 2009 one ton. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 75,000 

 



Page 43 

 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replace old logo with rebranded logo - would include shaving down entire court and 
cleaning off old lines. 

  
 

Fiscal Year: 2024 

Prority: 

Project Title: 

Low 

Basketball Court Logo Update 

Project Purpose: Refinish basketball court and add rebranded Auburn Recreation logo 

Department: Recreation 
 

 
Location: Hasty Community Center 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 15 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 35,000 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Current logo is 10 years old and does not resemble our current logo or brand. Cost would 
include the annual cleaning that the floor gets so that would be taken off FY 24 budget. 
This quote also includes the cost of relining the court for pickleball, volleyball and 
basketball. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ -  

 

Total Cost 
$ 35,000 

 



Page 44 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Replace locker room exhaust fan and perform control system upgrades 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
NSBA Exhauste Fan and Control System Upgrade 

Project Purpose: Facility Maintenance 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Norway Savings Bank Arena 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 68,000 

System was never properly commissioned when building was opened. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ -  $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 68,000 

 



Page 45 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

Install new HVAC system in Hasty. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Very High 

 
Hasty HVAC Replacement and Ventilation Upgrades 

Project Purpose: Facility Maintenance 
 

Department: Capital Investment and Purchasing 
 

 

Location: Hasty 
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 550,000 

No air conditioning exists and existing heating system is failing. Air quality is also poor. 

 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ -  $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 550,000 

 



Page 46 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

opy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

icture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

Purchase one ambulance. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Ambulance Purchase 

Project Purpose: New equipment to meet service needs 
 

Department: EMS 
 

 

Location: Fire 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 450,000 

C 

P 

As call volumes continue to increase, Auburn EMS has reached the point where we must 
begin to staff a third ambulance to meet the service demands of the City. To prepare for 
having three staffed units, we must increase our fleet of ambulances. The current lead 
time from the ambulance vendor for a new ambulance is 18-24 months. It is important 
that we make this purchase now to have the ambulance before the service demands 
exceed our ability to respond. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 450,000 

 



Page 47 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

opy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

cture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

Purchase one Cardiac Monitor. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
HIgh 

 
Cardiac Monitor 

Project Purpose: Add one additional system to department capabilities 
 

Department: EMS 
 

 

Location: Fire 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 47,000 

C 

Pi 

Cardiac monitors allow EMS providers to monitor and document patient heart function as well as 
to defibrillate (shock) a patient’s heart during sever cardiac events. This is required equipment on 
all licensed ambulances. This purchase is in preparation for adding a third response 
ambulance to meet increasing call volumes and increased patient demands for service. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 47,000 

 



Page 48 

 

 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 

Copy picture here if available. Click on Insert, illustrations, 

Picture, resize to fit this box 

Project 
Description: 

 

Purchase one chest compression system. 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
High 

 
Chest Compression System 

Project Purpose: Add one additional system to department capabilities 
 

Department: EMS 
 

 

Location: FIre 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Life: 10 years 
 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 21,000 

Chest compression systems produce much more effective, and consistent compressions 
during CPR then manual compressions. This can result in better patient outcomes. This 
purchase is in preparation for adding a third response ambulance to meet increasing call 
volumes and increased patient demands for service. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ - $ - $ - 

 

Total Cost 
$ 21,000 

 



 

 

Project 
Description: 

 

New projector to replace current one, repair the divider wall, funds to help cover any repair costs to 
AV system. New signage to match rebranding. 

City of Auburn, Maine 
FY 2024 Capital Improvement Program 
Project Description Worksheet 

 
 

Fiscal Year: 
Prority: 

 
Project Title: 

2024 
Low 

 
Senior Center Upgrades & Repairs 

Project Purpose: Replacement of equipment or additional equipment needed 
 

Department: Recreation 
 

 

Location: Auburn Senior Community Center 

Justification: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Useful Life: 2 years 

 

Cost FY 2024 
$ 10,000 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 49 

Building is used almost every day. Making sure funds are available to make quick repairs is 
crucial to ensure the building stays up and running for not only our own senior programming 
but also the Senior groups and rentals that we service daily. 

Cost FY 2025 Cost FY 2026 Cost FY 2027 Cost FY 2028 
$ - $ 10,000 $ - $ 10,000 

 

Total Cost 
$ 30,000 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023    
 
Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Planning and Permitting Director 
 

Subject:  Update on the licensing process for the Lewiston Falls/Monty Hydro Facility 
 
Information: This is an informational update on the licensing process for the Lewiston Falls/Monty Hydro 

Facility on the main stem of the Androscoggin in anticipation of the expiration of the existing license in 
2026.  Our Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, New Auburn Master Plan, the Androscoggin Greenway Plan 
and ATRC Bridging the Gaps Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans give staff substantive direction and support to 
advocate for needs, improvements and studies to identify the best way to meet identified needs to 
mitigate impacts of the facility on the community. The latest submittal is the Study report summarizing the 
studies completed to date during 2022: 
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/docinfo?accession_num=20230302-5205 .  The city and other 
stakeholders requested recreational, aesthetic, cultural, hydro-facility operational and river flow related 
studies to ensure that we have the information needed to advocate for mitigation of facility impacts and 
needs of the community at future stages of the process.  The City drafted study requests with stakeholders, 
including the City of Lewiston and at least 6 other stakeholder groups, to best advocate for Auburn’s needs 
in this process.  Most of the requests were included in the Study Plan.  Past licensing processes have been 
more successful when there is coordination and agreement on study needs, rather than conflicting 
requests from multiple stakeholders.  More studies will be completed in 2023 to inform the licensing 
process.  Staff will file a response to reiterate that additional studies as outlined in the Study Plan remain to 
be completed in 2023, most notably stakeholder involvement in recreational and aesthetic flow studies.   

 
The Pre-Application Document (PAD) was filed in 2021 and is available here:  
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/filelist?accession_num=20210804-5115 .      
 
Staff will participate in virtual meetings to review the findings of the 2022 studies on Wednesday April 5th. 

The meetings will be held online (via Microsoft Teams) with a phone-in option. Brookfield (BWPH) will provide 
login/phone-in information and a more detailed agenda for each meeting to interested parties who plan on 
attending one or both meetings in advance of the meeting date. In order to plan accordingly, BWPH 
respectfully requests that agencies or stakeholders who plan on attending one or both meetings RSVP by 
contacting Jessica Antonez at Jessica.Antonez@kleinschmidtgroup.com on or before March 29, 2023. 

10 AM - 12 PM      Water Quality, Bass Spawning, Fish Assemblage, and Upstream Eel 

2 PM - 3:30 PM     Recreation and Aesthetics 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None.   
 
 

https://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/docinfo?accession_num=20230302-5205
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/filelist?accession_num=20210804-5115
mailto:Jessica.Antonez@kleinschmidtgroup.com


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Update and discussion 
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: 6.6.2022 Communications(attached), 12.20.2021 Communications  
 
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments: 6.6.2022 Communications, Study Meeting Notice 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Planning and Permitting Department 
60 Court Street | Auburn, Maine 04210  
www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 

   
 

 
 
 
 
To:  Auburn Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Eric J. Cousens, Planning and Permitting Director 
 
Re:  Hydropower, Rivers and Dams Update June 6, 2022, Council Meeting 
 
Date: June 6, 2022, Council Meeting 
 
 
 

Lewiston Auburn Riverfest 
 
The Riverfest, sponsored by the Lewiston Auburn Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce, is scheduled for 
Friday June 17th and Saturday June 18th and has something to offer for everyone.  Last year's event was well 
attended and a great success.  This year offers a kickball tournament, Trek Across Maine welcome, Rowing 
Regatta, canoe rentals, Beer Garden and Food Trucks.  
 
 For a full schedule see the website:  https://discoverlamaine.com/the-riverfest/ 

 
 

Lewiston Falls Monty Hydro Licensing Update  
 
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission licenses hydropower facilities.  The city may participate and 
comment on a proposed license as a stakeholder, much like a resident participates in a Planning Board process at 
a public hearing.  We only get a chance to comment on a license renewal every 30 to 50 years so it is important 
that we advocate for compatibility and even contribution to accomplishing community goals in exchange for 
using the public’s river for private power generating revenues.  The FERC process requires the applicant to 
address fisheries, recreation, water quality and other potential impacts of their operation with equal consideration 
compared to power generation. Documents related to current and past licensing processes are available here: 
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/pages/government/rivers-hydropower .   

  
We updated the Council in December of 2021 to start to familiarize you with the current relicensing of the 
Lewiston Falls Monty Hydro Project (FERC P-2302) in preparation for future discussions.  The relicensing 
process has begun for the Lewiston Falls/Monty Hydro Facility on the main stem of the Androscoggin in 
anticipation of the expiration of the existing license in 2026.  Our Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, New 
Auburn Master Plan, the Androscoggin Greenway Plan and ATRC Bridging the Gaps Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Plans give staff substantive direction and support to advocate for needs, improvements and studies to identify the 
best way to meet identified needs to mitigate impacts of project operations on the community. The Pre-
Application Document (PAD) has been filed and is available here:  
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/filelist?accession_num=20210804-5115 .   Despite advocacy for a more 
inclusive Integrated Licensing Process, ( TLP Objection and ILP Request.pdf )  the request for Traditional 
Licensing Process was approved by FERC for this relicensing and an initial stakeholder meeting was held ahead 
of schedule (Table 2-1, Page 41 of the linked PAD) in November.  The city along with other stakeholders asked 
for recreational, aesthetic, cultural, hydro-facility operational and river flow related studies to ensure that we have 
the information needed to advocate for mitigation of facility impacts and needs of the community at future stages 

https://discoverlamaine.com/the-riverfest/
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/pages/government/rivers-hydropower
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/filelist?accession_num=20210804-5115
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/Planning/Rivers_and_Hydropower/CityOfAuburnMaineILPRequestLetterSigned.pdf


   
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

of the process.  We submitted study requests with stakeholders, including the City of Lewiston and at least 6 other 
stakeholder groups, to best advocate for Auburn’s needs in December of 2021 (Study Requests12.31.21 ).  Past 
licensing processes have been more successful when there is coordination and agreement on study needs, rather 
than conflicting requests from multiple stakeholders.  There will be public meetings and feedback needed from 
City Council, Committees and potentially legal counsel in the coming few years as we work with Brookfield and 
FERC on this important 40-year relicensing.   
 
At this stage we have submitted comments on a Preapplication Document, preferred licensing process and a Draft 
Study Plan  (StudyPlanComments31822.pdf) .  A Final study Plan was proposed by Brookfield and they have 
begun the 2022 study season P2302FinalStudyPlan.pdf .  Many agencies focused on different aspects of project 
operations and their impacts on the environment participate in the process.  While the City has been supportive of 
studies requested by Maine DEP, NOAA Fisheries ( NOAA Comments.pdf  and Maine IFW related to water 
quality and fisheries improvement our focus has been on recreation, aesthetics of the falls and access for the 
public.  Water quality, historic resources and fisheries are important to the City’s overall recreational goals, but 
State and Federal Agencies are well equipped to for strong participation on those elements and we have 
collaborated with them.   
 
The Final Study Plan (P2302FinalStudyPlan.pdf) covers almost all recreational elements requested for the main 
stem of the river-See pages 58-67 of the plan.  The primary shortcomings relate to water quality monitoring in the 
Lewiston owned Canals and specific analysis of how water over the falls affects water quality and dissolved 
oxygen below the falls.  The second part of that will have data available from the proposed water quality 
monitoring and we will continue to advocate for the analysis of how flows over the falls affect dissolved oxygen 
as part of the process, but it is currently not proposed.  A primary shortcoming of the study plans is not including 
the canals in the study based on the argument that they are owned by Lewiston and not part of the project area 
mapped by FERC.  In 2020 the project area was adjusted to remove nearly 4 miles of river and the canals from the 
FERC Project Boundary which the City opposed (Objection to P2302 Project Boundary Amendment 2020.pdf ) 
but was ultimately approved by FERC.  The ownership and FERC project Boundary test for inclusion in studies is 
not usually what determines if they are included.  The test is whether the project operations impact the area, which 
they clearly do.  Brookfield controls flows at this facility and at the upstream Gulf Island and Deer Rips hydro 
facilities and those three operations control water levels and flows in the canals that we believe are clearly 
affected by project operations.  This raises a question of whether Auburn wants to advocate among stakeholders 
to exercise the FERC Study Dispute Process or take that on ourselves - either way we would need legal assistance 
and funding to do that.  We are looking for preliminary feedback from Council on whether you wish to explore 
this further in an executive session.  Staff’s opinion is that we got most of what we asked for and would be happy 
to join Lewiston if they chose to challenge this important element, but that fight may not be our best use of 
limited resources.   
 
The 2022 Study season is upon us, and Memorial Day Weekend will be the start of recreational monitoring and a 
survey for recreational users along the river in Auburn and Lewiston.  We will be encouraging people who visit 
the area to take the time to fill out the survey.  The results will be used to gauge recreational interest, benefits and 

https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/Upload%205262022/Study%20request%202302%20Lewiston%20Falls%2012.30.21%20Final.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/Upload%205262022/P2302DraftStudyPlanComments31822.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/Upload%205262022/Lewiston%20Falls%20Monty%20Hydro%20Final%20Study%20Plan%20Final4292022.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/Upload%205262022/NOAAFisheries%20Lewiston%20Falls%20PAD%20comments%20and%20requested%20studies.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/Upload%205262022/Lewiston%20Falls%20Monty%20Hydro%20Final%20Study%20Plan%20Final4292022.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/Upload%205262022/CityofAuburnMaineCommentsP2302Amendment2020.pdf


   
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

needs for the project area and nearby amenities affected by 
project operations.  Signage has been placed along the 
Riverwalk and other project recreation facilities to alert the 
public of the existence of the survey and in person counts will 
be conducted by Brookfield staff throughout the summer.  The 
website hosting the survey is here: 
https://lewistonfalls.brookfieldusprojects.com/ Results are 
intended to be collected based on specific locations visited and 
not from people that were there in the past so please encourage 
anyone visiting the riverfront area to check out the signs at 
Bonney Park, West Pitch Park, the North River Road Boat 
Launch, Durham Boat Launch or riverside parks and trails in 
Lewiston and provide feedback for each location that they 
enjoy or desire improvements.  We will promote awareness of 
the effort on social media and any other opportunities.   
 
 
 
Little Androscoggin River Dams - Recreation and 
Restoration Opportunities 
 
Barker Mill Dams Update:  The City participated, with other 
stakeholders, in the relicensing process at Lower and Upper 
Barker Mill Dams which are relatively small generators with limited profits.  We achieved recreational benefits 
including increased minimum flows and controlled releases for whitewater paddling.  The licensee looks very 
close to a settlement agreement to resolve a dispute over fish passage where the applicant used upstream 
obstructions as one reason not to restore fish access in the watershed.  It looks like fish passage will be required 
during the terms of the new licenses and in exchange KEI will likely get a longer than normal license term of up 
to 45 years.  Not many people that were here for this licensing process will be active participants in the next one.  
The proposed Settlement agreement would require KEI to install upstream passage for American eel for the 2026 
migration season (June 1, 2026) and required to install upstream passage for anadromous fish species by the 2031 
migration season (May 1, 2031), subject to a consideration of “New Information” as defined in the Settlement.   
 
Littlefield Dam Update: The Littlefield Dam is the next obstruction upstream that impacts recreation, the 
environment and fish movement in the river.  Past efforts to apply for grants to remove the unused partially 
breached dam have not been funded and required significant local match.  There is a potential new opportunity in 
the coming years that has been explored by the Conservation Commission and Federal Grant Funding Sources 
that could go beyond restoration and include development of improved recreational access that furthers goals of 
the Comprehensive and Strategic Plans of the City.  The anticipated funding sources may also be match free with 
the Little Androscoggin being identified as critical Atlantic Salmon Habitat.  Sam Boss, Conservation 
Commission Chair explains this exciting opportunity below.  Staff is hopeful that the City might be able to fund a 
planning and design exercise to position us for successful application when the funding becomes available.  One 
option is to appropriate Comprehensive Plan Implementation funds if the Council is interested in this.   

 

City Council, Mayor, and City Staff,  

 

The Conservation Working Group has a longstanding interest in the removal of the defunct Littlefield Dam, 
which is a major barrier to fish passage on the Little Androscoggin River. Earlier this year we learned of an 
upcoming opportunity to apply for federal funds to support dam removals and other fish passage restoration 
efforts. The 2021 Infrastructure and Jobs Act allocated $400 million to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Association (NOAA) to restore fish passage through the removal of dams and other barriers (further 

https://lewistonfalls.brookfieldusprojects.com/


   
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

information here). NOAA will award $80 million in grants for each of the next five years to support 
communities in undertaking river restoration efforts. Although a request for proposals has not yet been released, 
our contacts at NOAA have confirmed that the grants will not require a matching contribution from 
municipalities to support the costs of projects. Partner organizations such as Maine Rivers, the Androscoggin 
Watershed Council, and Trout Unlimited have described this funding and the lack of a matching requirement as 
a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to make significant progress with river restoration efforts. 

 

Because of the expected terms of the NOAA grants, we anticipate that the process will be highly competitive, 
and we have been working to lay the groundwork for a strong proposal when funds are released. Although some 
funding will be available to support the planning stages of dam removal and subsequent restoration efforts, we 
expect that shovel ready projects will have the best chance of receiving full funding. To this end, it would aid 
the development of a proposal significantly if the Council can provide funding to support further site 
assessments and planning. We have led multiple site visits, and have been in consistent conversation with local 
stakeholders including property owners on Littlefield Road and Panolam Surface Systems. Our goal is to 
identify scenarios for removing the dam that maximize ecological and recreational benefits to the broader 
community while minimizing any negative impacts for abutting property owners.  

 

 

Outlined below are several key reasons to support the removal of the Littlefield Dam and further restoration 
efforts in the Little Androscoggin watershed.  

 

1. Improved fish passage and other ecological benefits 

The Littlefield Dam is a full or partial barrier to fish passage, depending on the time of year and water 
levels. Removing the Littlefield Dam would help to pave the way for further efforts to restore fish species 
including alewives, shad, and American Eels to the Androscoggin watershed. These species need to travel 
freely from the ocean into freshwater rivers to spawn. Alewives in particular are a keystone species that 
provide a particularly important food source for the endangered Atlantic Salmon, as well as several other 
fish species (further information here). Removal of the Littlefield Dam will demonstrate our commitment 
to improving fish passage and strengthen our position in future negotiations for fish passage on the Lower 
and Upper Barker Dams. In addition to improving fish passage, dam removal improves dissolved oxygen 
content and sediment transfer, leading to healthier riverine ecosystems.  

 

2. Avoid potential safety issues 

The Littlefield Dam has not been operational for at least fifty years, and there is no indication it has 
received regular maintenance in that time; FERC records indicate the most recent effort to restore the dam 
to production was in the 1980s, but that effort ultimately failed. During site visits when the water levels 
have been lower, we have observed significant corrosion of the bottom of the dam; high precipitation 
events or ice jams could eventually cause the dam to break in an uncontrolled way that would send 
concrete debris and sediment downriver and pose potential hazards to property owners and industries 
downriver. The dam can also present risks to swimmers, hikers, etc. who may go too close to the dam and 
not realize the dangers of its undertow.  Taking full advantage of NOAA funds now to remove the dam in 
a controlled way will avoid the potential safety issues these scenarios could cause in the future. 

 

3. Improved recreational opportunities 

https://www.noaa.gov/news-release/statement-from-noaa-administrator-rick-spinrad-on-signing-of-bipartisan-infrastructure-investment
https://www.nrcm.org/programs/waters/restoring-alewives-maine-rivers/


   
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

The Little Androscoggin is an underutilized resource for recreation that runs through the heart of Auburn. 
Removal of the Littlefield Dam could open up approximately four miles of the river for passage of kayaks 
and canoes and other small craft, with the potential that more of the river upstream would be navigable, 
depending on the water levels and time of year. NOAA staff have indicated that applicants should “think 
big”, and submit a proposal that would support not only the removal of the dam, but the creation of 
possible recreational improvements such as a boat launch at the site, and restoration/modification of the 
riverbed to facilitate passage of boats and fish.  

 

More information about the points outlined above is available on request (auburn.me.conservation@gmail.com ).  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Sam Boss, Chair 

Conservation Working Group 

 
 
 
 

mailto:auburn.me.conservation@gmail.com


3/28/23, 10:24 AM Mail - Eric Cousens - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/id/AAQkADEwODBlOGQwLTA3NzMtNDIxNy04NzllLTM0ZmIyZmIyMzFmOQAQAJKPzq2EtbhGqojAOh3qpzY%3D 1/1

Lewiston Falls Hydroelectric Project (FERC No. 2302) Relicensing Study Report Meeting

Jessica Antonez <Jessica.Antonez@Kleinschmidtgroup.com>
Fri 3/10/2023 1:35 PM

To: Anderson, Luke <Luke.Anderson@brookfieldrenewable.com>

Some people who received this message don't often get email from jessica.antonez@kleinschmidtgroup.com. Learn why
this is important

Dear Stakeholders:
 
On March 2, 2023, Brookfield White Pine Hydro (BWPH) distributed to Stakeholders via email and
electronic link (FERC's eLibrary at h�ps://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/docinfo?accession_num=20230302-
5205 ), six of the study reports for resource studies conducted in 2022 for the Lewiston Falls Project
relicensing effort.
 
On behalf of BWPH, we are providing the following schedule for interested stakeholders to par�cipate in
a virtual mee�ng to review the findings of the 2022 studies. Given the number of studies and the
varying topics, we are dividing the mee�ng into two sessions on Wednesday April 5th. 

10 AM - 12 PM      Water Quality, Bass Spawning, Fish Assemblage, and Upstream Eel
2 PM - 3:30 PM     Recrea�on and Aesthe�cs

The mee�ngs will be held online (via Microso� Teams) with a phone-in op�on. We will provide
login/phone-in informa�on and a more detailed agenda for each mee�ng to interested par�es who plan
on a�ending one or both mee�ngs in advance of the mee�ng date. In order to plan accordingly, BWPH
respec�ully requests that agencies or stakeholders who plan on a�ending one or both mee�ngs RSVP by
contac�ng Jessica Antonez at Jessica.Antonez@kleinschmidtgroup.com on or before March 29, 2023. 
 
Finally, BWPH is extending the comment due date (from April 3rd, as noted in the study report cover
le�er) to April 14, 2023, to allow for addi�onal �me to have a mee�ng to review the study findings
before comments are due. 
 
Please contact Luke Anderson, Licensing Manager, with any ques�ons at
Luke.Anderson@brookfieldrenewable.com. 
 
If you would like to be removed from this distribu�on list or have updated contact informa�on, please
contact Jessica Antonez and Jessica.Antonez@kleinschmidtgroup.com.
 
Thank you,
 
Jessica Antonez
Associate Licensing Coordinator

Office: 207-416-1214
www.kleinschmidtgroup.com 

https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
https://elibrary.ferc.gov/eLibrary/docinfo?accession_num=20230302-5205
http://www.kleinschmidtgroup.com/


 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 
 

 
 
 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 3, 2023 
 
Subject:  Executive Session 
 
Information: Economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C) which premature disclosure would prejudice the 
competitive or bargaining position of the City. 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  
Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 
A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 
disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation 
or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  
(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 
(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 
conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of 
whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 
session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 
interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 
prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  
 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the 
body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open 
to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  
 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 
litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of 
professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, 
municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  
 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those 
records is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 
consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an 
examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  
 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 
subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending 
enforcement matter.  



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 
 

 
 
 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 3, 2023 
 
Subject:  Executive Session 
 
Information: Economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C) which premature disclosure would prejudice the 
competitive or bargaining position of the City. 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  
Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 
A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 
disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation 
or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  
(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 
(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 
conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of 
whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 
session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 
interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 
prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  
 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the 
body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open 
to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  
 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 
litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of 
professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, 
municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  
 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those 
records is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 
consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an 
examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  
 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 
subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending 
enforcement matter.  



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 

 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023   Order: 36-04032023 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Scheduling the School Budget Validation Referendum Election to be held on June 13, 2023 
 
Information:  
Title M.R.S.A. 20-A, Section 2307 requires Municipalities to conduct a School Budget Validation Referendum 

Election each year. 

The date is consistent with previous years, and there is a cost savings when holding this election at the same 

time as a State election which is normally the second Tuesday in June. It also results in better voter turnout.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage of this order. 
 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:     
 

Attachments: Order  



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 36-04032022 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby sets the date to hold the School Budget Validation 

Referendum Election for Tuesday, June 13, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Meeting Date:   April 3, 2023    Order:   45-04032023* 
 
Author:  Jason D. Moen, Chief of Police 
 
Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Assets – Tyler Poland  #1 
 

Information:   
In 2016, Auburn Police Department DEA Task Force officers received confidential intelligence information 

from multiple sources and began a three-month investigation.  Other agencies including federal, state and 

local law enforcement participated in extensive surveillance.  In February 2018, DEA Task Force members 

as well as 11 Auburn Police Department officers supported DEA during a large enforcement operation 

involving the execution of nineteen (19) simultaneous federal search warrants involving the seizure of large 

amounts of drug and non-drug evidence. Subsequent to this operation, Auburn PD’s Task Force Officer 

drafted a report detailing the execution of a search warrant on Merrow Road in Auburn, Maine, and the 

acquisition of non-drug exhibits. $32,000.00 in a financial account was seized. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The Department of the Treasury seeks to transfer $1,600.00 (5% of the $32,000. 
Seizure) in U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police Department.  Funds will be used for the purchase of equipment. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $1,600.00. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:  
 

Attachments:  
*None 

 



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 
Joseph Morin, Ward Four 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 
Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 
Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

 
ORDER 45-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDERED, Accept the transfer of $1,600.00 forfeiture assets in U.S. Currency to the Auburn 
Police Department (Department of the Treasury – 04180003-01). 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Meeting Date:   April 3, 2023    Order:   46-04032023* 
 
Author:  Jason D. Moen, Chief of Police 
 
Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Assets – Tyler Poland  #2 
 

Information:   
In 2016, Auburn Police Department DEA Task Force officers received confidential intelligence information 

from multiple sources and began a three-month investigation.  Other agencies including federal, state and 

local law enforcement participated in extensive surveillance.  In February 2018, DEA Task Force members 

as well as 11 Auburn Police Department officers supported DEA during a large enforcement operation 

involving the execution of nineteen (19) simultaneous federal search warrants involving the seizure of large 

amounts of drug and non-drug evidence. Subsequent to this operation, Auburn PD’s Task Force Officer 

drafted a report detailing the execution of a search warrant on Merrow Road in Auburn, Maine, and the 

acquisition of non-drug exhibits. $40,000 in a financial account was seized. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The Department of the Treasury seeks to transfer $2,000.00 (5% of the $40,000. 
Seizure) in U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police Department.  Funds will be used for the purchase of equipment. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $2,000.00. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:  
 

Attachments:  
*None 

 



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 
Joseph Morin, Ward Four 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 
Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 
Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

 
ORDER  46-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDERED, Accept the transfer of $2,000.00 forfeiture assets in Rem in U.S. Currency to the 
Auburn Police Department (Department of the Treasury – 04180003-02). 

 















City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of the Mayor 
60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  
www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 
March 15, 2023 
 
 
 
Senator Susan Collins 
55 Lisbon Street 
Lewiston, Maine 04240 
 
Re: Androscoggin Historical Society 
 
Dear Senator Collins: 
 
I have recently learned that the Androscoggin Historical Society is planning to apply for a HUD grant 
through the Economic Development Initiative Program. I encourage you to support this application, not 
only for the historical society itself, but for the spin-off effects on the local economy. 
 
The Society is a long-time stable force in our community and is now undergoing a metamorphosis to 
broaden its influence. Its new home will provide it with greater exposure and allow it to attract more 
consumers to our county. 
 
Auburn benefits from the activities of the Androscoggin Historical Society both culturally and 
economically. Its programs at the one-room 1850 West Auburn Schoolhouse and at the 1796 Knight 
House in downtown Auburn attract visitors from far and wide, visitors who also patronize local hotels, 
restaurants, and retail businesses. 
 
I believe that inclusion of $150,000 in directed spending for the AHS will result in benefits for the entire 
community and I encourage you to include it in your spending package.  Thank you for your 
consideration.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jason Levesque 
Mayor 
 





1

Alison Pepin

From: Phil Crowell
Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 11:22 AM
To: Alison Pepin
Subject: FW: LA Arts budget proposal FY'24
Attachments: FY 24 for Cities of Lewiston and Auburn.pdf

 
 

Phil Crowell, Jr., ICMA-CM 

City Manager 

City of Auburn 
60 Court Street, Auburn, ME 04210 
Ph: 207-333-6601 Ext. 1222 
www.auburnmaine.gov  
 

From: James Parakilas <jparakil@bates.edu>  
Sent: Monday, January 23, 2023 3:33 PM 
To: Phil Crowell <pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov> 
Subject: LA Arts budget proposal FY'24 
 

January 23, 2023
  
  
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 
City of Auburn  
60 Court Street 
Auburn, Maine 04210 
  
Dear Phil, 
  
Attached please find LA Arts’ proposed budget for FY 2024.   
  
We are requesting from the City Auburn in FY 2024 a renewal of our FY 2023 grant of $30,000.  
  
This year we have been delighted to relaunch our long-standing collaboration with the City of 
Auburn and with the artists, arts organizations, and citizens of Auburn by means of this support 
for our work.  In particular, it has been gratifying for us to establish a working relationship with 
Jennifer Boenig and other members of your administration, beginning with the planning of the 
Christmas Fair on Festival Plaza last month.  We have been discussing other ambitious ideas with 
her for the future. 
  



2

Our ability to serve our community has just been revived by our move into new quarters, 
splendidly outfitted to our specifications, at 168 Lisbon Street in Lewiston.  We invite you and 
your colleagues to join us for the dedication of that space on Saturday, February 18 from 1:00 to 
4:00 pm. 
  
This re-opening is allowing us to restart our exhibition program with a series of wonderful shows 
that has already begun with Lesia Sochor’s “Reuse, Repair, Reconsider.”  It allows us to restart the 
indoor concert series that we formerly offered in our Downstage space.  It is allowing us to 
welcome a variety of community arts and culture organizations into our home for gatherings, 
lectures, and workshops; these already include Sketchy Friends, The Corner, and the Androscoggin 
Historical Society.  And it is allowing us to plan events of our own, including a film series, that we 
have not had an adequate space for in the past. 
  
Our other plans include new possibilities for public art works, which the adoption of public art 
protocols by the City of Auburn will facilitate tremendously, and for providing new arts 
opportunities to young people in Auburn. 
  
I look forward to introducing our new Arts Agency Manager, Gerald Walsh, to you and your 
colleagues and to presenting our budget proposal and plans to you on February 14. 
  
                                                                                                            With best wishes, 

Jim Parakilas, Board Chair
LA Arts



0000001

Revenue FY22 Actual FY23Budget as of 1/5/23
FY 23 Estimated 
Actual FY24Budget

50001 Government & Public Inst Grants 108,296.91  $    75,000.00  $       68,602.13  $       84,852.00  $              75,000.00  $       
50002 Private Grants - Foundations 15,141.50  $       15,000.00  $       8,504.06  $          8,504.06  $                 20,000.00  $       
50003 Corporate Donations & Sponsorships 11,944.00  $       14,000.00  $       15,050.00  $       15,050.00  $              15,000.00  $       
50004 Individual Donations 11,826.13  $       10,000.00  $       6,749.63  $          16,775.50  $              15,000.00  $       
50007 Donated Goods -   $                       300.00  $               0 400.00  $                      500.00  $               
50008 Donated Services 7,396.80  $          14,000.00  $       3,352.08  $          14,300.00  $              14,900.00  $       
50009 Endowment Donation 250.00  $              250.00  $               300.00  $              5,300.00  $                 5,300.00  $          
Total Contributions, Grants & Gifts 154,855.34  $    128,550.00  $    102,557.90  $    145,181.56  $           145,700.00  $    

50201  Advertising -   $                       -   $                        -   $                       -   $                               -   $                        
50202  Ticket Sales -   $                       -   $                        0 -   $                               -   $                        
50203  Art Work Sales -   $                       -   $                        0 -   $                               -   $                        
50204  Program Service Fees -   $                       1,500.00  $          390.00  $              390.00  $                      400.00  $               
50205  Adminstrative Service Fees -   $                       -   $                        -   $                       -   $                               -   $                        
50206   Sales Commissions -   $                       -   $                        0 -   $                               -   $                        
50208 Bar Sales -   $                       $             - 0 $                    - $             -
50400  Other Revenues and Gains 11,035.58  $       8,000.00  $          1,140.00  $          1,500.00  $                 1,500.00  $          

Total Program Service Revenue 11,035.58  $       9,500.00  $          1,530.00  $          1,890.00  $                 1,900.00  $          

Total Revenue 165,890.92  $    138,050.00  $    104,087.90  $    147,071.56  $           147,600.00  $    

Expenses

70000  Employee Expenses 14,729.21  $       26,000.00  $       14,721.31  $       34,220.00  $              42,500.00  $       
70200  Non-Employee Expense 61,807.75  $       60,000.00  $       23,822.50  $       28,500.00  $              50,400.00  $       
70400  Advertising & Promotion 6,980.11  $          13,000.00  $       4,622.12  $          14,590.00  $              16,160.00  $       
70600  Office Expenses 3,150.33  $          10,500.00  $       2,238.24  $          4,500.00  $                 7,000.00  $          
70800  Information Technology 1,675.79  $          2,000.00  $          811.75  $              1,200.00  $                 2,000.00  $          
71200  Occupancy Costs 11,726.83  $       30,000.00  $       29,669.70  $       35,000.00  $              25,300.00  $       
72400  Insurance Expense 2,596.60  $          3,500.00  $          2,893.00  $          3,200.00  $                 3,200.00  $          
72600  Program Production Expenses 2,193.45  $          4,000.00  $          5,616.79  $          11,820.00  $              14,390.00  $       
All other expenses 29,171.93  $       3,800.00  $          1,819.04  $          

Total Expenses 134,032.00  $    152,800.00  $    86,214.45  $       133,030.00  $           160,950.00  $    

Net Income 31,858.92  $       (14,750.00) $     17,873.45  $       14,041.56  $              (13,350.00) $     

LA Arts Funds Request for the City of Lewiston



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023    Orders: 33-03202023 & 37-04032023 
 
Author:  Mark Conrad 
 

Subject: Approving additional costs for environmental remediation of the new high school project and 
authorizing general obligation bonds and a tax levy therefor. First reading.   
 
Information:  The existing Edward Little High School is scheduled for demolition following the opening of the 
new High School.  Over the course of the project, with further testing for PCB remediation, the extent of the 
required abatement has significantly increased beyond the project allowance of $675,000, to a current 
estimate of over $5 million.  This requires additional funding to the construction budget of just under $4.6 
million.   
The full cost of additional bonding required to raise these funds will fully qualify for State school subsidy funds.  

The State of Maine will therefore fully fund this increase, with no impact on the local tax rate. 

If the City of Auburn fails to approve these additional funds at referendum we will not have the funding available 

to demolish the existing High School.  The building will remain empty on the site, resulting in the loss of athletic 

fields, parking, and the bus loop, and in additional costs to modify the existing site plan, particularly with regard 

to drainage. 

At a straw poll held on February 27, 2023 the 49 residents voting in the straw poll unanimously supported the 

referendum question.  On March 8, 2023 the State Board of Education unanimously approved a revised concept 

approval for the Edward Little High School Construction Project, a necessary step to amend (increase) the 

approved construction budget and qualify for State subsidy. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  Additional Debt Service costs offset by additional state subsidy funds 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Hold a public hearing and recommend passage of second reading on the bond 
order 33-03202023 and recommend passage of referendum ballot question, order 37-04032023.  
 
Previous Meetings and History:  Passage of first reading on the bonds at the 3/20/2023 Council meeting. 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments: Memorandum from Dr. Brown with a “Statement of Fact” to the State Board of Education 















{W15863168.2} 

CITY OF AUBURN  
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the City Charter, notice is hereby given that the Auburn City Council 
will hold a public hearing and second reading on Monday, April 3, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers, Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street on a proposed order authorizing $4,598,331 of 
the City’s general obligation bonds to finance additional costs for environmental remediation 
(Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB) Abatement) of the soil and existing building material at the 
new high school project location.  The order is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office 
during regular business hours and on the City’s website: www.auburnmaine.gov.  
 
Public comment may be given at the meeting or can be sent via email to: 
comments@auburnmaine.gov.  Your comments will be included in the meeting minutes.  
 
The City Council meeting can be viewed LIVE on on Great Falls TV channel 11 and on the City of 
Auburn YouTube channel. 
 
Following the public hearing and first reading, the City Council expects to take final action on the 
order.   
 
 

http://www.auburnmaine.gov/
mailto:comments@auburnmaine.gov


 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 33-03202023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDER – APPROVING $4,598,331 OF ADDITIONAL COSTS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION 

OF NEW HIGH SCHOOL PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND A TAX 

LEVY THEREFOR   

Be It Ordered by the Auburn City Council, following a public hearing duly called and held as 

required by Article 8, Section 8.13 of the Auburn City Charter: 

THAT there be and hereby is authorized (a) $4,598,331 in additional costs for environmental 

remediation (Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB) Abatement) of the soil and existing building 

material at the new high school project location, and (b) issuance of up to $4,598,331 City of 

Auburn general obligation bonds, which may be sold at or above par, the sale proceeds of which, 

together with investment earnings, if any, are appropriated to finance such costs (including costs 

of issuance and capitalized interest). 

Be It Further Ordered by the Auburn City Council: 

THAT the Finance Director be and hereby is authorized and empowered, in the name of and on 

behalf of the City, to prepare, issue, and sell such bonds and notes in anticipation therof, in the 

aggregate amount of $4,598,331 at one time, or from time to time, as one or more separate bond 

issues or consolidated with any other issue of bonds and notes authorized to be issued by the 

City Council, as term bonds or serial bonds, through a public offering or a private placement, on 

a competitive or negotiated basis, or some combination of any of the foregoing, all as the Finance 

Director shall determine to be appropriate in her sole discretion. 

THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereunder shall be executed in the name of and on behalf 

of the City by the City’s Finance Director and its Treasurer, either or both of whose signatures 

may be by facsimile to the extent permitted by law, and shall bear the City seal thereon, attested 

by its Clerk. 

THAT the Finance Director be and hereby is authorized and empowered, in the name of and on 

behalf of the City, to establish, determine and approve the form, dates, maturities (with the last 

maturity not to exceed the maximum term permitted by law), denominations, interest rates, 

places of payment, provisions for early redemption, with or without a premium, prior to the 

stated maturity date(s), and all other details, including the timing and manner of their sale and 

award, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by her execution thereof. 



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 33-03202023 

THAT a tax levy is hereby provided for each fiscal year that the bonds authorized hereunder 

remain outstanding to meet the annual installments of principal and interest as may accrue in 

each respective year.   

 THAT the Finance Director be and hereby is authorized and empowered, in the name of and on 

behalf of the City, to designate the bond or notes authorized hereunder, or a portion thereof, as 

qualified tax-exempt obligations under Section 265 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended.  

 THAT the Finance Director be and hereby is authorized and empowered, in the name of and on 

behalf of the City, to do or cause to be done all such acts and things, including to approve and 

select a financial advisor and underwriter with respect to the issue, sale and delivery of the bonds 

and notes, and to approve, execute and deliver such contracts, agreements, loan agreements, 

investment agreements, bond purchase agreements, official statements, certificates, tax 

certificates, instruments, assignments and other documents (the “ Bond Documents”), as may be 

necessary or advisable in order to accomplish the issuance of the bonds and notes, which Bond 

Documents may be in such form and contain such terms, conditions and provisions including, 

without limitation, the waiving of the City’s sovereign or governmental immunity with respect to 

the enforceability of any of the forgoing, as may be approved by the Finance Director, such 

approval to be conclusively evidenced by her execution thereof. 

THAT if the Finance Director, Treasurer, or Clerk are for any reason unavailable to approve and 

execute the bonds or any other Bond Document necessary or convenient to the issuance, 

execution and delivery of the bonds or notes, the person or persons then acting in any such 

capacity, whether on an interim or acting basis, as an assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is 

authorized to act for such official with the same force and effect as if such official had himself or 

herself performed such act.  

THAT if any of the officers or officials of the City who have signed or sealed the bonds or notes 

shall cease to be such officers or officials before the bonds or notes so signed and sealed shall 

have been actually authenticated or delivered by the City, such bonds or notes nevertheless may 

be authenticated, issued, and delivered with the same force and effect as though the person or 

persons who signed or sealed such bonds or notes had not ceased to be such officer or official; 

and also any such bonds or notes may be signed and sealed on behalf of the City by those persons 

who, at the actual date of the execution of such bonds or notes, shall be the proper officers and 

officials of the City, although at the nominal date of such bonds or notes any such person shall 

not have been such officer or official.   



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 33-03202023 

THAT the City may pay certain costs of the projects prior to the issuance of the bonds and notes 

(referred to as “original expenditures”); to that end, the City hereby declares its official intent to 

reimburse itself for such original expenditures from the proceeds of such bonds and notes, and 

this Order shall constitute the City’s declaration of official intent pursuant to Treasury Regulation 

§1.150-2.  

THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereby are conditioned upon and made subject to an 

approving vote of the voters of the City.  

A Public Notice describing the general purpose of the borrowing and the terms thereof and the 

times and places where copies of the bond proposal were available for inspection by the public 

was published on or before March 20, 2023, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper 

published in the City of Auburn and in Androscoggin County.    

  

A public hearing was held on April 3, 2023.    

 

 



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 37-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER – APPROVING QUESTION FOR MUNICIPAL REFERENDUM ELECTION WITH RESPECT TO 

ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION COSTS FOR NEW HIGH SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS THEREFOR   

 

Be It Ordered by the Auburn City Council that the question in substantially the following form 

and with substantially the following summary descriptions be approved and submitted to the 

voters of the City of Auburn to consider at a municipal referendum election: 

 

Shall the City of Auburn approve City Council Order 33-03202023 and (a) authorize up to 

$4,598,331 in additional costs for environmental remediation (Polychlorinated Biphenyls 

(PCB) Abatement) of the soil and existing building material at the new high school project 

location, and (b) authorize up to $4,598,331 of the City’s general obligation bonds (which 

may be callable) for that purpose (all of which additional bonds have been approved for 

State debt service subsidy support), the sale proceeds of which, together with investment 

earnings, if any, are appropriated to finance such costs (including costs of issuance and 

capitalized interest)? 

 

Project Description:  During construction of the new Edward Little High School Project, 

the City discovered unexpected Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB) contamination in the soil 

and existing building material at the new high school project location.  The additional 

funding will pay for the costs to remediate and abate this environmental concern. 

 

Be It Further Ordered by the Auburn City Council that the ballot shall contain the additional 

information required by Title 20-A and Title 30-A. 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023   Order: 38-04032023 
 
Author:  Jay Brenchick, Director of Economic Development 
 

Subject: Sale of 32 Dunn Street (Former St. Louis Church)   
 
Information: The sale of this property for $50,000  will allow Thomas Robinson (the developer) to renovate the 
former St. Louis Church into one and two bedroom into twenty (20) market rate apartments. 
 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  Possible use of up to $250,000 from the downtown incentive fund. If downtown 
incentive funds are requested, City Council will need to approve the use of the funds durning an open City 
Council Meeting.  
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Approve  
 
 
Previous Meetings and History:  
 
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments:  

 
 



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 38-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a Purchase and 

Sale Agreement with Thomas Robinson for the purchase of 32 Dunn Street Auburn, Maine (Tax 

Parcel 221-196-001) for $50,000 Fifty Thousand Dollars. 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 03, 2023   Order: 39-04032023 
 
Author:  Alison F. Pepin, Deputy Clerk 
 

Subject:  Olive Garden Holdings, LLC., DBA The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant, #6480  
 
Information: Olive Garden Holdings, LLC., DBA The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant, #6480, a new business 
located at 10 Subaru Drive applied for a Liquor License. Police, Fire, and Code have completed the necessary 
inspections and have granted approval. There are no outstanding taxes owed.   
 
 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None  
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Public Hearing and recommend passage.  
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A  
 
 

City Manager Comments: I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
             
 
Attachments:  

• Applications 

• Public Notice 

• Order 















































































































 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 
Joseph Morin, Ward Four 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 
Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 
Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 39-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Liquor License for Olive Garden Holdings, 
LLC., DBA/The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant #6480.   



 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 3, 2023  
 

Author: Glen E. Holmes, Director of Business & Community Development 
 

Subject: Annual Reports to Maine State Housing  
 
Information:  The City is required in accordance with the Certificate of Approval issued by the Maine State 
Housing Authority to provide them with an annual report for each of the Affordable Housing Districts and 
associated TIFs. 
 

City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approve the Order as presented  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 

Attachments: The Order and the Reports 

 
 
 

 



02-07-2022 

Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 20___ – March 31, 20___ 
Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District 

Submission Deadline of April 30, 20___ 
 
 
Municipality: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Municipal official submitting this report: 
 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 Printed name 
 
 
 ____________________________________ ________________________ 
 Signature      Date 
 
 Title:   ________________________________________________ 
 Mailing address: ________________________________________________ 
 Phone number: ________________________________________________ 
 Email address: ________________________________________________ 
 
 
Name of Affordable Housing Development District: 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date the municipal legislative body approved this Report (not the District): 
________________, 20___ 
 
In submitting this report, the legislative body of the municipality certifies that the public purpose of the affordable 
housing district is being met and that the required housing affordability and other conditions of approval, including 
limitations on uses of tax increment revenues for approved development project costs, set forth in the Certificate of 
Approval issued by Maine State Housing Authority for the District and the related Affordable Housing 
Development Program are being maintained. 
 
Status of affordable housing within the District: “Affordable” means for households earning no more 
than 120% area median income.  
 

Type of housing unit # of Existing 
affordable 

units 

# of Existing 
market units 

# of Planned 
affordable units 

# of Planned 
market units 

Rental (family)     

Rental (senior)     

Owned home/condo     

 



02-07-2022 

Please list property sales within the District (NOTE:  impact on affordability is not required by 
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above): 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Please describe any changes from what was described in the approved Development 
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope or timing of development 
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District 
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



02-07-2022 

Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 20___ – March 31, 20___ 
Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District 

Submission Deadline of April 30, 20___ 
 
 
Municipality: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Municipal official submitting this report: 
 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 Printed name 
 
 
 ____________________________________ ________________________ 
 Signature      Date 
 
 Title:   ________________________________________________ 
 Mailing address: ________________________________________________ 
 Phone number: ________________________________________________ 
 Email address: ________________________________________________ 
 
 
Name of Affordable Housing Development District: 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date the municipal legislative body approved this Report (not the District): 
________________, 20___ 
 
In submitting this report, the legislative body of the municipality certifies that the public purpose of the affordable 
housing district is being met and that the required housing affordability and other conditions of approval, including 
limitations on uses of tax increment revenues for approved development project costs, set forth in the Certificate of 
Approval issued by Maine State Housing Authority for the District and the related Affordable Housing 
Development Program are being maintained. 
 
Status of affordable housing within the District: “Affordable” means for households earning no more 
than 120% area median income.  
 

Type of housing unit # of Existing 
affordable 

units 

# of Existing 
market units 

# of Planned 
affordable units 

# of Planned 
market units 

Rental (family)     

Rental (senior)     

Owned home/condo     

 



02-07-2022 

Please list property sales within the District (NOTE:  impact on affordability is not required by 
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above): 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Please describe any changes from what was described in the approved Development 
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope or timing of development 
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District 
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



02-07-2022 

Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 20___ – March 31, 20___ 
Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District 

Submission Deadline of April 30, 20___ 
 
 
Municipality: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Municipal official submitting this report: 
 
 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 Printed name 
 
 
 ____________________________________ ________________________ 
 Signature      Date 
 
 Title:   ________________________________________________ 
 Mailing address: ________________________________________________ 
 Phone number: ________________________________________________ 
 Email address: ________________________________________________ 
 
 
Name of Affordable Housing Development District: 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date the municipal legislative body approved this Report (not the District): 
________________, 20___ 
 
In submitting this report, the legislative body of the municipality certifies that the public purpose of the affordable 
housing district is being met and that the required housing affordability and other conditions of approval, including 
limitations on uses of tax increment revenues for approved development project costs, set forth in the Certificate of 
Approval issued by Maine State Housing Authority for the District and the related Affordable Housing 
Development Program are being maintained. 
 
Status of affordable housing within the District: “Affordable” means for households earning no more 
than 120% area median income.  
 

Type of housing unit # of Existing 
affordable 

units 

# of Existing 
market units 

# of Planned 
affordable units 

# of Planned 
market units 

Rental (family)     

Rental (senior)     

Owned home/condo     

 



02-07-2022 

Please list property sales within the District (NOTE:  impact on affordability is not required by 
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above): 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Please describe any changes from what was described in the approved Development 
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope or timing of development 
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District 
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph R. Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana N. Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan A. Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 40-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Annual Reports to the Maine State 

Housing Authority for Tax Year April 1, 2022 – March 31, 2023, and authorizes the City Manager 

to sign the annual reports for Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing Districts, #16 

(Webster School), #21 (477 Minot Ave) and #22 (48 Hampshire Street), as provided by Business 

and Community Development Staff.   



Page 1 of 1 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  04/03/2023 Order: 41-04032023 

Author:  Brian Wood, Assistant City Manager 

Subject:  Authorization for the City Manager to execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City 
of Auburn and the Teamsters Local Union 340 covering 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2026 

Information:  The Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of Auburn and Teamsters Local Union 340 
includes market adjustments for FY 23.  

The following is a summary of the changes: 

• FY 24 Market rate adjustments

• FY 25  4% Cola

• FY 26  4 % Cola

• Cell Phone stipend of $25

• Two weeks of matching paid parental leave

• Juneteenth as paid holiday

City Budgetary Impacts: 
Fiscal Year 24 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council vote for passage of this Resolve. 

Previous Meetings and History: 

City Manager Comments: 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature: 

Attachments: 



Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 41-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the Collective 

Bargaining Agreement with the Teamsters Union Local 340 (Highway), effective 07/01/2023.  



Page 1 of 1 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  04/03/2023 Order: 42-04032023 

Author:  Brian Wood, Assistant City Manager 

Subject:  Authorization for the City Manager to execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City 
of Auburn and the Teamsters 340 Union for Mechanics covering 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2026 

Information:    Authorization for the City Manager to execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the 
City of Auburn and the Teamsters Local Union 340 for Mechanics, covering 07/01/2023 to 06/30/2026 

The following is a summary of the changes: 

• FY 24 Market Adjustment

• FY 25  4% Cola

• FY 26  4 % Cola

• Two weeks matching paid parental leave

• Additional 10 hour floater in lieu of Juneteenth

City Budgetary Impacts: 

FY 24 includes budget impact 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council vote for passage of this Resolve. 

Previous Meetings and History: 

City Manager Comments: 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature: 

Attachments: 



Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 42-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the Collective 

Bargaining Agreement with the Teamsters Union Mechanics Local 340 , effective 07/01/2023. 



Page 1 of 1 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023 Order: 43-04032023 

Author:  Jennifer Boenig, Downtown Coordinator 

Subject: Approving the Mass Gathering for Auburn Lobster Festival event  

Information: The Auburn Lobster Festival is scheduled for Saturday, May 6, 2023 from 1:00-7:00 PM. The 
event will be held in Festival Plaza and on Main Street which will be closed with public works trucks and 
barricades. This free community event will feature live music, craft brews, food trucks and more to help 
support our state’s lobster industry.  

A mass gathering is defined by ordinance as any gathering held outdoors with the intent to attract the 
continued attendance of 1,000 or more persons for two or more hours.   

City Budgetary Impacts: This event is budgeted through the Economic Development Department. 

Staff Recommended Action: Hold the public hearing and motion to approve the mass gathering. 

Previous Meetings and History: NA 

City Manager Comments: 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  

Attachments: 
• Application for Lobster Festival mass gathering
• Application for a License for an Incoporated Civic Organization
• Public Notice
• Order













Richard Whiting, Ward One 
Joseph Morin, Ward Four 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 
Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 
Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 43-04032023

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Mass Gathering permit for the May 6, 
2023 Auburn Lobster Festival event sponsored by the City of Auburn. The event will be held in 
the Festival Plaza and Main Street area. 



Page 1 of 1 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023 Order: 44-04032023 

Author:  Jennifer Boenig, Downtown Coordinator 

Subject:  Approving the temporary liquor license for an Incorporated Civic Organization for the Auburn Lobster 
Festival to be held on May 6, 2023. Public Hearing.    

Information: The Auburn Lobster Festival is scheduled for Saturday, May 6, 2023 from 1:00-7:00 PM. The event 
will be held in Festival Plaza and on Main Street which will be closed with public works trucks and barricades. 
This free community event will feature live music, craft brews, food trucks and more to help support our state’s 
lobster industry.   

The City is applying for a Liquor License for an Incorporated Civic Organization to allow the sale of alcohol 
within the designated area of Festival Plaza and Main Street.  

A Publc Hearing is not required per MRS Title 28-A Liquor § 1071. INCORPORATED CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS 4. 

Application G. Approval by the municipal officers of the municipality in which the proposed licensed premises 

are located, which, notwithstanding section 653, may be granted without notice or a public hearing.  

City Budgetary Impacts: This event is budgeted through the Economic Development Department.  

Staff Recommended Action: Hold the public hearing and motion to approve the liquor license. 

Previous Meetings and History: NA 

City Manager Comments: 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  

Attachments: 

• Application for a License for an Incorporated Civic Organization.

• Public Notice

• Order













Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Joseph Morin, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 44-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the temporary liquor license for an 

Incorporated Civic Organization for the Auburn Lobster Festival to be held on May 6, 2023 in 

the Festival Plaza and Main Street area.  



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023     Order: 47-04032023 
 
Author:  Kelsey Earle, Deputy Finance Director 
 
Subject:  Acceptance consideration of gifted property- Riverside Drive  
 
Information:  The property owners of Riverside Drive (PID 184-030) approached the City with the offer of 
gifting the parcel as they had sold the adjoining parcel in 2021 and this portion was not acquired in that sale; 
the parcel had very little value to the new owners and no longer serves a purpose to the current owners 
without the adjoining property. City staff reviewed the parcel and determined that the potential for additional 
takeout and emergency access, and preservation of river views were favorable reasons to accept.  
 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:   None  
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Acceptance of the gifted property. 
 
 
Previous Meetings and History:  None 
 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments:  
 
∙Parcel Map 
∙Parcel Record Card 
∙Quitclaim Deed 
 





Unofficial Property Record Card - Melrose, MA
General Property Data

Parcel ID  184-030 Account Number 184030000
Prior Parcel ID  

Property Owner  GAGNE REALTY HOLDINGS LLC Property Location RIVERSIDE DR
Property Use AGRICULTURAL

Mailing Address 28 OLD ROUTE 27 ROAD Most Recent Sale Date 12/30/2021
Legal Reference 1100-16

City BELGRADE Grantor GAGNE & SON HOLDING CO INC
Mailing State ME Zip 04917-3708 Sale Price 0
ParcelZoning N/A Land Area 2.800 acres

Current Property Assessment
Card 1 Value Building Value 0 Xtra Features

Value 0 Land Value 3,400 Total Value 3,400

Building Description
Building Style N/A Foundation Type N/A Flooring Type N/A

# of Living Units 0 Frame Type N/A Basement Floor N/A
Year Built N/A Roof Structure N/A Heating Type N/A

Building Grade N/A Roof Cover N/A Heating Fuel N/A
Building Condition N/A Siding N/A Air Conditioning 0%
Finished Area (SF) 0 Interior Walls N/A # of Bsmt Garages 0

Number Rooms 0 # of Bedrooms 0 # of Full Baths 0
# of 3/4 Baths 0 # of 1/2 Baths 0 # of Other Fixtures 0

Legal Description
NARROW LOT ON RIVER EDGE

Narrative Description of Property
This property contains 2.800 acres of land mainly classified as AGRICULTURAL with a(n) N/A style building, built about N/A , having N/A exterior and
N/A roof cover, with 0 commercial unit(s) and 0 residential unit(s), 0 room(s), 0 bedroom(s), 0 bath(s), 0 half bath(s).

Property Images

SKETCH IMAGE

Disclaimer: This information is believed to be correct but is subject to change and is not warranteed.



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

QUITCLAIM DEED WITH COVENANT 
(Maine Statutory Short Form) 

 
 
 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that GAGNE REALTY 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Maine limited liability company with a mailing address of 67 Old 
Route 27 Road, Belgrade, ME  04917 (“Grantor”), as a gift, grants to the CITY OF 
AUBURN, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and 
located at 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine 04210 (“Grantee”), its successors and assigns 
forever, with QUITCLAIM COVENANT, a certain parcel of land located in the City of 
Auburn, Androscoggin County, Maine, more particularly bounded and described as 
follows: 
 

A certain lot or parcel of land located in the City of Auburn, County of 
Androscoggin and State of Maine, bounded and described as follows: 

 
Beginning at a point on the Southeasterly line of the Riverside 
Drive, said point being the Northerly corner of land now or 
formerly owned by Albert and Lorette Belanger: thence (1) in a 
Northeasterly direction along the Southeasterly line of said 
Riverside Drive two hundred seventy-four feet (274') to PT Station 
56+62.78 as shown on a plan of MSHC Federal Aid Project No. S-
0150 and recorded in the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds; 
thence (2) in a Northeasterly direction along said Riverside Drive 
one thousand five hundred seven and fifty-six hundredths feet 
(1,507.56') to PC Station 71+70.34; thence (3) in a Northeasterly 
direction along a curve in said Riverside Drive four hundred forty-
nine and eleven hundredths (449.11') to PT Station 76+23.40; 
thence (4) in a Northeasterly direction along said Riverside Drive 
four hundred forty-one and three hundredths feet (441.03') to PC 
Station 80+64.43; thence (5) in a Northeasterly direction along a 
curve in said Riverside Drive two hundred forty-nine feet more or 
less (249'+) to land now or formerly owned by Albert and Alice 
Turgeon; thence (6) in a Southeasterly direction along land of said 
Turgeon twenty-eight feet more or less (28'+/-) to the 
Androscoggin River; thence (7) in a Southwesterly direction along 
said Androscoggin River two thousand nine hundred twenty-five 



2 
 

feet more or less (2,925'+/-) to land of said Belanger; thence (8) in 
a Southwesterly direction along land of said Belanger ninety feet 
more or less (90'+/-) to the point of beginning. 
 
Being those same premises conveyed to Grantor by deed of Gagne 
& Son Holding Co., Inc. dated December 30, 2021 and recorded in 
the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds in Book 11000, 
Page 16. 

 
Also hereby conveying all rights, easements, privileges, and appurtenances, 

belonging to the premises hereinabove described. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Gagne Realty Holdings, LLC caused this deed to be 
signed by Albert P. Gagne, its Member, as duly authorized. 
 
 Dated:  __________________, 2023 
 
      GAGNE REALTY HOLDINGS, LLC 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      By:  Albert P. Gagne 

Its:  Member 
 
 
STATE OF MAINE 
CUMBERLAND, ss.     ________________, 2023 
 
 Personally appeared before me the above named Albert P. Gagne and 
acknowledged the foregoing to be his free act and deed in his said capacity as Member of 
Gagne Realty Holdings, LLC and the free act and deed of Gagne Realty Holdings, LLC. 
 
 
       Before me, 

       _________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

       _________________________________ 

       Print Name 



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 
Joseph Morin, Ward Four 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 
Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 
Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 47-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Manager be, and hereby is, authorized to accept delivery on behalf of 
the City of the attached deed from Gagne Realty Holdings, LLC conveying, as a gift, real 
property approximately 2.8 acres in size located on the generally southeasterly side of Riverside 
Drive and currently shown as Assessor’s Map 184, Lot 30; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City Manager be, and hereby is, authorized to execute any 
necessary paperwork reasonably incident to Gagne Realty Holdings, LLC’s gift to the City. 
 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 3, 2023  Order#  48-04032023 
 
Author:  Phil Crowell, City Manager 
 
Subject:  Drummond Street Park Naming Rights  
 
Information:  A request as been made by Tizz Crowley to name the Drummond Street Playground Park the 
“Edna Hadakin Crowley Mothers' Park” which will be commonly referred to as “Mothers’ Park”.  To receive this 
naming right, the applicant will donate $10,000 to the City of Auburn for park improvements. $5,000 will be 
received upon approval of the naming and $1,000 will be paid annually for an additional five years. The naming 
will remain each year upon receiving $1,000 annually.  
 
The applicant desires to unveil the naming and plans for the park improvements on Mother’s Day, May 14, 
2023.  
 
The adopted policy for naming facilities and infrastructure is attached. The request is based on a monetary 
donation and not a permanent naming so the application form is not being used and a public hearing will not 
be required to consider other nominations. The naming rights agreement will be the document used.  
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None. Any costs will be spent from the funds received. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Consider the request and if in agreement, direct the city manager to enter into a 
naming rights agreement with Tizz Crowley. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 
Attachments: Naming of Facilities and Infrastructure Policy and Naming Rights Agreement 
 
 



POLICY FOR NAMING OF FACILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
Any naming or renaming of public places in Auburn should help to better define and 

build a sense of community, while also serving to honor the contributions of worthy 

individuals. The City of Auburn strives to have a process that serves these goals in a way 

that allows public participation. 

The City Council will be the official naming body for all municipally owned facilities 

and infrastructure. The Council will make recommendations and work collaboratively 

with other governmental entities in the naming of facilities and infrastructure not solely 

owned by the City of Auburn. 

Although the Council reserves the right to use whatever process they deem most 

appropriate for the circumstances, in general, the Council will use the following process. 

Nominations will be accepted for names to any public facility, park, building, or 

infrastructure. Nominations should include the name and contact information from the 

person submitting the name as well as the reasons for their nomination. 

The criteria for naming a city facility or infrastructure should reflect one or more of the 

following: 

1. reflect City services provided in or at facility; 

2. reflect geographical location; 

3. reflect significant natural features; or 

4. honor a significant individual (see below) 

Criteria for naming a facility after an individual: 

May be named after an individual living or dead; 

a. made a unique contribution to the area being named; 

b. substantially improved or contributed to the quality of life in Auburn; 

c. gave significant civic contribution(s) to Auburn or the region; 

d. brought recognition to Auburn for their achievements; 



e. donated land or significant resources to the facility. 

Once the nomination deadline has passed the Council will review all suggestions by 

using the above criteria. At its discretion, the Council may choose to appoint a 

subcommittee to review the nominations and forward their recommendation to the City 

Council. 

The City Council shall hold a public hearing at a City Council meeting to solicit feedback 

on the final list of naming nominations. The Council will then take final action. 



City of Auburn, Maine 
60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  
www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 
 

 

1 

 

Naming Rights Agreement 

This Naming Rights Agreement ("Agreement"), effective as of MONTH DAY, YEAR 
("Effective Date"), is made and entered into by and between _______________________ 
(hereinafter, "Donor"), whose address is ______________________________________, and 
the City of Auburn, Maine (hereinafter the "City"), (each a "Party" and collectively, the 
"Parties"). 
 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City owns certain parcel of land ( _______) located at __________________, 
and commonly known as _____________________ (the "___________"); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into a naming rights agreement pursuant to which the 
City will grant Donor temporary exclusive naming rights for the ____________ referenced 
above in return for certain benefits set forth below. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual promises, and all other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are acknowledged, the 
Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Term. The Initial term of this Agreement shall be for __________ years, commencing 
on ___________________, and ending on ____________________, unless otherwise 
terminated earlier in accordance with the terms and conditions contained herein. The Parties by 
mutual written agreement may extend the term of this Agreement. 

2. Naming Rights Fee. In consideration of the naming rights and ancillary benefits granted 
by the City hereunder, the Donor agrees to pay a naming rights fee in the amount of 
___________________ ("$__________") dollars, in the manner and amounts set forth below 
("Naming Rights Fee"). 

3. Naming Rights Payment Schedule. Donor has the option to pay the Naming Rights Fee 
to the City over a period of __________ (__) years. The initial payment of ____________ 
($_______) dollars shall be paid no later than _________________, and then the _______ 
remaining payments shall be paid annually in accordance with the following schedule: 

Naming Rights Fee Amount Due Date 
$  
$  
$  



2 

$  
$  
Total: $  

 
Donor may accelerate the payment of any or all of these payments at any time, at Donors 
discretion, as long as the cumulative total of all payments meets the total amount of $________ 
as agreed by the Parties. Payments shall be paid by Donor to the City via check or electronic 
funds transfer acceptable to Donor and the City. 
 
4 Use of Payments. The payments shall be used exclusively for the _______________ 
Development Project. 

5 Acknowledgment. In consideration for the payment of the consideration and ancillary 
benefits granted hereunder, the City agrees to acknowledge Donors naming rights during the 
term of this Agreement by naming the ____________________________________________. 
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Donor naming rights will continue for the ten-year term 
of this Agreement. Any additional benefits or rights granted to Donor beyond those specified in 
this section must be mutually agreed to by the Parties and are subject to the payment of additional 
consideration in an amount agreed to by the Parties. 

6. Promotion. During the term of this Agreement, the City, in consideration of the naming 
rights and benefits conferred hereunder, shall have the right, without charge, to photograph, use 
the names, likenesses, and images of Donors’ _________________ in photographic, 
audiovisual, digital or any other form of media (the "Media Materials") and to use, reproduce, 
distribute, exhibit, and publish the Media Materials in any manner, and in whole or in part, in 
City brochures, website postings, informational and marketing materials, and reports and 
publications. 

7.  Ownership. Donor acknowledges that the ownership of the park remains with the City. 

8.  Assignment. This Agreement and the rights and benefits hereunder may not be assigned 
by either Party without the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent shall be in the 
sole and absolute discretion of the non-assigning Party. 

9.  Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed to be 
delivered, whether or not actually received, when deposited in the United States Postal Service, 
postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to a Party, and 
the addresses set forth below: 
 

Donor 
Address 
Address 
 

City of Auburn 
Attn: City Manager 
60 Court St 
Auburn, ME  04210  

 

10 Termination of Naming. In addition to any rights and remedies available in law, the City 
may terminate this Agreement and all rights and benefits of Donor hereunder, including 



3 

termination of naming rights and affixation of the logoed plaques or signs upon the occurrence 
of the following: 

a. In the event Donor fails to make any payment due under this Agreement; and such 
default is not cured within thirty ("30") calendar days following the date of written 
notice of default by the City; or 

b. In the City's reasonable opinion, at any time during the term of this Agreement, Donor 
or the chosen name of the __________________ have developed or acquired a 
negative connotation for any reason such that the reputation of the City is or might be 
at risk. 

If termination is due to failure of payment, as of the effective date of termination, the City shall 
have no further obligation or liability to Donor and shall not be required to return any portion of 
the Naming Rights Payment already received; and the City may immediately cease to use or 
display the name. The City may in its sole and absolute discretion determine an alternative 
recognition for the portion of the payment already received. 

If termination is due to a change in circumstances such that the City determines Donor or the 
___________________ name have developed or acquired a negative connotation that may or 
does put the reputation of the ___________ and/or the City at risk, Donor shall not be entitled 
to a refund of any portion of the payment made. 

Should Donor decide to end affiliation with the City during the timeframe outlined in this 
agreement, Donor will be responsible for the payment to remove the name of the room. 

11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, which 
together shall constitute one and the same agreement among the parties. 

13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with 
regard to the matters referenced herein, and supersedes all prior oral and written agreements, if 
any, of the Parties in respect hereto. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except 
by written agreement executed by both Parties hereto. The captions inserted in this Agreement 
are for convenience only and in no way define, limit, or otherwise describe the scope or intent 
of this Agreement, or any provision hereof, or in any way affect the interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

14. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Maine and the City of Auburn, without regard to any 
conflict of law. Any legal proceeding brought in connection with disputes relating to or arising 
out of this Agreement shall be filed and heard in the courts of Androscoggin County. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties as of the day and year 
indicated above. 

CITY OF AUBURN, ME Donor 
 
________________________________   ______________________________ 
City Manager 



 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 
Joseph Morin, Ward Four 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 
Dana Staples, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Ryan Hawes, Ward Two 
Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 48-04032023 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Manager be, and hereby is, authorized to enter into a naming rights 
agreement with Tizz Crowley to name the Drummond Street Playground Park the “Edna 
Hadakin Crowley Mothers’ Park.” The request is based on a monetary donation. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City Manager be, and hereby is, authorized to accept 
delivery on behalf of the City a monetary donation of $10,000 for park improvements. $5,000 
will be received upon approval of the naming and $1,000 annually for an additional five years. 
The naming will remain each year upon receiving $1,000 annually.  
 


	0  Agenda 04-03-2023
	City Council Workshop & Meeting
	I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen requests, in which event, the item will be removed fr...
	Setting the date for the School Budget Validation Referendum Election (June 13, 2023).
	II. Minutes
	 March 20, 2023, Regular Council Meeting
	V. Unfinished Business


	1  Info sheet Budget and 5 Year CIP Plan
	1a  Final CIP Info for CIP Plan adoption 032023
	CM Proposed CIP Cover FY24
	Final CIP Info for CIP Plan adoption 032023
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024

	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024
	Fiscal Year:
	2024


	4  Info Sheet FERC Lewiston Falls Study Plan Update
	4a  Hydropower, Rivers and Dams update Communication 6.6.2022 (1)
	4b  FERC Study Meeting Notice
	4c  Executive Session Info Sheet 2022
	4d  Executive Session Info Sheet 2022
	5  Info Sheet Setting the date for the SBVR Election
	5a Order 36-04032023 Set date for SBVR
	5b  2023    POLAND, TYLER     INFO SHEET    4-3-2023  1
	5c  Order 45-04032023 Poland, Tyler
	5d  2023    POLAND,  TYLER    INFO SHEET    4-3-2023  2
	5e  Order 46-04032023 POLAND, TYLER
	6  Minutes 3-20-2023a
	6a  Minutes 3-20-2023b  LEVESQUE    ANDROS. HISTORICAL SOCIETY    3-2023
	7a  Communication from David Chittim
	7b  Memo Style
	7c  FY 24 for Cities of Lewiston and Auburn
	8  Info sheet PCB school bonds and referendum
	8a  PCB referendum - City Information Sheet attachment
	8b  Auburn ELHS School Bonds - public hearing notice (additional (environmental remediation costs)(v.2)(15863168.2)
	8c  Order 33-03202023 School remediation bond
	9  Order 37-04032023 school referendum question
	10  Info sheet StLouisChurchsale
	10a  Order 38-04032023 Sale of St. Louis Church
	11  Info Sheet Olive garden
	11a  Olive Garden FSE
	11b  OliveGardenStateLiquorApp
	11c  Olive Garden Public Hearing Ad
	11d  Order 39-04032023 Olive Garden Liquor License
	12  Info sheet - Annual Report MSH
	12a   Webster School
	12b  477 Minot Ave
	12c  Hampshire Street
	12d  Order 40-04032023 Annual Rprt MSH
	13  Info Sheet for 4-3-2023 Teamsters  Contract (Highway)
	13a  Order 41-04032023 Teamster 2023 (Highway)
	14  Information sheet Teamsters Mechanics 2023 - Mechanics
	14a  Order 42-04032023 Teamster Mechanics 2023 (Mechanics)
	15  Info sheet Lobster Fest Mass Gath
	15a  Lobster Fest Mass Gath Appl
	15b  Order 43-04032023 Lobster Fest Mass Gath
	16  Info sheet Lobster Festival Liquor Lic
	16a  Lobster Festival 2023 BABLO permit
	16b  Order 44-04032023 Lobster Festival Liquor Lic
	17  Info Sheet- Gifted Property- Riverside Drive
	17a  MapRiversideDrive
	17b  PropertyRecordCard
	17c  1-Quitclaim Deed with Covenant-Gagne Realty Holdings LLC to City Draft 03-20-23
	17d  Order XX-04032023 Riverside Drive Gift
	18  Info Sheet Naming Drummond Street Park[9588]
	18a  POLICY FOR NAMING OF FACILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE[9590]
	18b  Mothers Park Naming Rights Agreement[9589]
	Naming Rights Agreement
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT

	18c  Order 48-04032023
	0  Agenda 04-03-2023.pdf
	City Council Workshop & Meeting
	I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen requests, in which event, the item will be removed fr...
	Setting the date for the School Budget Validation Referendum Election (June 13, 2023).
	II. Minutes
	 March 20, 2023, Regular Council Meeting
	V. Unfinished Business



	Annual Report for Tax Year April 1 20: 22
	March 31 20: 23
	Submission Deadline of April 30 20: 23
	Municipality: City of Auburn
	Printed name: Phillip L. Crowell
	Date: 03/23/2023
	undefined: City Manager
	Mailing address: 60 Court Street, Auburn ME 04210
	Phone number: 207-333-6601
	Email address: pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov
	Name of Affordable Housing Development District: Webster School
	Date the municipal legislative body approved this Report not the District: April, 3
	20: 23
	 of Existing affordable unitsRental family: 28
	 of Existing market unitsRental family: 0
	 of Planned affordable unitsRental family: 0
	 of Planned market unitsRental family: 0
	 of Existing affordable unitsRental senior: 0
	 of Existing market unitsRental senior: 0
	 of Planned affordable unitsRental senior: 0
	 of Planned market unitsRental senior: 0
	 of Existing affordable unitsOwned homecondo: 0
	 of Existing market unitsOwned homecondo: 0
	 of Planned affordable unitsOwned homecondo: 0
	 of Planned market unitsOwned homecondo: 0
	the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above: N/A
	allow alternative uses of funds please list how funds are being used in practice: N/A


